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To the Members of SBI Capital Markets Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of SBI
Capital Markets Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance
Sheet as at 31st March, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and Notes to the
Financial Statements including a summary of the material accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give
the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended (“Ind-AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, and its
profit including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its
cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

2. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under
those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained , is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on standalone financial
statements.

Key Audit Matters

3. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the Standalone financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in thewEri
context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, { v
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in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be
the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

No.

Key Audit Matter

Auditor’s Response

i)

Assessment of Valuation of
investments measured at fair value
for which no listed price in an active
market is available and valued using
market information and significant
unobservable input:

The Company has certain Investments
of which listed price in an active
market is not available and has valued
at fair value at Rs. 7017.82 crore (Rs.
6830.21 crore as on 31.03.2023) as
required by Ind-AS. The corresponding
fair value change is recognized in Other
Comprehensive Income (OCI) and
deferred tax in accordance with related
Accounting Standard (Ind-AS 109). In
measuring these Investments,
valuation methods are used based on
inputs that are not directly observable
from market information and certain
other unobservable inputs. The
Management has also used the services
of an independent professional valuer.
Key inputs used in the valuation of
above  investments are  market
multiples and growth rate, terminal
rate, discount rate, NAV etc.

The valuation of these assets is
important to our audit as it is highly
dependent on estimates (various
assumptions and techniques used)
which contain assumptions that are
not observable in the market. Given the
inherent subjectivity in the valuation of
the above investments, relative
significance of these investments to the
standalone financial statements and
the nature and extent of audit

Principal Audit Procedures

We understood and tested the
design and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s
control over the assessment of
valuation of investments.

- We evaluated the
independence, competence,
capabilities and objectivity
of Management’s expert
(Independent  professional
valuer).

- We evaluated together with
the auditor’s expert to
assess the reasonableness
of the valuation
methodology and underlying
assumptions relating to
market multiples and
growth rate, discount rate,
NAV etc. used by the
independent professional
valuer to estimate the fair
value of investments.

- We validated the source
data on sample basis and
tested the arithmetical
accuracy of the calculation
of valuation of investments.

- We assessed the adequacy
of the disclosures in the
standalone financial

statements.
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procedures involved, we determined|procedures we consider that
this to be a key audit matter. the management’s assessment

(Refer Note 2 (vii)(b) and Note 6(1) to the © e e

) / non-listed price in an active
Standalone Financial Statements) market iI; available .

reasonable.

ii) | Evaluation of uncertain tax |Principal Audit Procedures
positions

We evaluated the Company’s
The Company has material uncertain|processes and controls for
tax positions including matters under|monitoring the tax disputes.

dispute which involves significant
judgment to determine the possible

, Obtained risk assessment of
outcome of these disputes.

tax litigation from our internal

tax expert to assess
(Refer Note 8 to the Standalone/management’s judgment and
Financial Statements) assumption on such matters

to challenge the management’s
underlying assumptions in
estimating the tax provision
and the possible outcome of
the disputes. They also
considered legal precedence
and other rulings in evaluating
management’s  position on
these uncertain tax positions.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and
Auditor’s Report Thereon

4. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the
other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Management discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report
including its annexure containing details of its subsidiaries & associate and
Corporate Governance Report, but does not include the standalone
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the <
course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. '
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If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information; we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for
the Standalone Financial Statements

5. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in
section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind-AS and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments’ and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial
‘Statements

6. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
Standalone financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected fo
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of thg
Standalone financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
standalone financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the standalone financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial
statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the
economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality

)
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and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to evaluate the effect of any
identified misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
'standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

7. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”),
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of
section 143 of the Act, and on the basis of such checks of the books and
records of the Company as we considered appropriate and accounting to
the information and explanations give to us, we give in the “Annexure - I” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

8. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report
that:

i. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations
which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purposes of our audit.

ii. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been
kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those
books.

ili. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with
the books of account.

E
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iv. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply
with the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of
the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

v. On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors
as on 31st March, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none
of the Directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2024 from being
appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

vi. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of
such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure - I1I”. OQur
report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting.

vii. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under
section 197(16), in our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its
directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of
section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in
excess of the limit laid down under section 197 of the Act.

viii. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report
in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

a) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its
financial position in its standalone financial statements; Refer Note
No. 33 to the Standalone Financial Statements.

b) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including
derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable
losses.

c) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

d) The management has represented that

i.  to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed
in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company
to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
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whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

ii.  to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed
in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by
the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

ili. Based on the audit procedures, nothing has come to our notice
that has caused us to believe that the representations under
sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material mis-statement.

e) The dividend paid during the year by the company is in compliance
with section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013.

f) Based on our examination which included test checks, the company
has used an accounting software for maintaining its books of
account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility
and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of
our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature
being tampered with.

9. As required by Section 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 we give in
“Annexure - III” our comments on the directions issued by the Comptroller
and Auditor General of India.

For S.C. Ajmera & Co.
ATERTS Chartered Accountants
/7 Q) FRN: 0002908C

Place: Udaipur % ONJXYJ

Date: 25.04.2024 o (Arun Sarupria- Partner)
UDIN : 24078398BKBOKT3713 M. No. 078398
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“Annexure - I” (Referred to in paragraph 7 under the heading ‘Report on Other
Legal & Regulatory Requirement’ of our report of even date to the standalone
financial statements of the SBI Capital Markets Limited for the year ended March
31, 2024 on the matters required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order,
2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government in terms of sub-section
{11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013)

i. In respect of Tangible & Intangible Assets :

(@) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and
Equipment;

(B) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of
Intangible assets.

(b) All the property, plant and equipment were physically verified during the
year by the management in accordance with a regular programme of
verification at reasonable intervals. According to the information and
explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on
our examination of the records of the Company, all the five title deeds of
immovable properties were provided for our verification and the same are
held in the name of the company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on
our examination of the records of the Company, no revaluation of
property, plant & equipment or intangible assets or both has been done.
Hence, Clause (d) of this para is not applicable to the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceedings
have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any
benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988
(45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. Hence, Clause (e) of this para is
not applicable to the Company.

" ii. In respect of Inventories:

(a) The securities held as stock in trade and in custody of the Company have
been verified by the management at reasonable intervals. In our opinion,
coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is
appropriate. The Company is maintaining proper records of inventory and
no discrepancies were noticed on comparing the physical securities/
statement from custodian with book records.
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, during the
year, the company has been sanctioned Overdraft facility of Rs.1553
Crores against Term deposits. The same was checked with the sanctioned
letter issued to the company. As per the sanction, the company is not
required to file returns/ statements with the Bank/ financial institutions.

iii. The company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or
security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other
parties. Accordingly, sub clauses (a), (b), (c), (d), (e) and (f) of the Order are
not applicable.

- iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of
the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and
security.

v. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public. Hence this
para of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

vi. As informed to us, the maintenance of Cost Records has not been specified
by the Central Government under sub- section (1) of Section 148 of the Act,
in respect of the activities carried on by the Company.

vii.In respect of Statutory Dues:

a) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the books of account, and records, the Company has
been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including
Goods and Service Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance,
Income-Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues
applicable to it with the appropriate authorities. As explained to us the
provisions of customs and excise are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed
amounts payable in respect of the above were in arrears as at March 31,
2024 for a period of more than six months from the date on when they
become payable.

b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no
dues of income tax, sales tax, service tax, goods & service tax,
outstanding on account of any dispute except as under:

——
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Nature of | Nature of Dues | Demand Assessment Year | Forum where
Statute disputed (Rs. | to which the dispute is
In Crores) amount relates pending
Income Tax issi
Issue relating to 1989-90, 1991- Commissioner
Act, 1961 i Income Tax
disallowance of 13.33 92, (Appeals)
expenses 2016-17
X‘;"Tg;ﬁx Issue relating to 1996-97 t01999- | Income Tax
’ disallowance of 15.69 00, 2001-02, Appellate Tribunal
expenses 2003-04, 2004- (ITAT)
05, 2005-06
Service T I lating t Commissioner
crvice fax | issues reiating to 1.94 FY 2000-2003 CGST(Appeals)
reconciliation of
Income

viil. According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of

our examination of the books of account, and records, there are no
transactions not recorded in the books of accounts that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(@) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given
to us, the company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other
borrowings.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or government or any government authority

(c) The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there
are no outstanding term loans at the beginning of the year and hence,
reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company,
funds raised on short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during
the year for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company,
the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on
account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries.

(f) The Company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of
securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies
and hence reporting on clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

x. The company has

(2)

not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer.

Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (x) (a) of the Order are not

applicable to the Company. O}NER"‘ 'fo
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(b) not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (x) (b) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

xi. During the course of our examination of the books and records of the
Company, carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing
practices in India, and according to the information and explanations given
to us,

(a) No fraud by the Company or fraud on the company has been noticed
or reported during the year.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act
has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule
13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government.

(c) No whistle-blower complaints have been received during the year by
the Company.

xii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause
3 (xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xiii.According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the related
parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013
wherever applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Standalone
Financial Statements as required by the applicable Indian Accounting
Standards.

xiv. The company has

(a) An internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of
its business.

(b) The reports of the Internal Auditors for the period under audit were
considered by us.

xv. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered
into any non-cash transactions with Directors or persons connected with
them. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

xvi. In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section
45 IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions
of clause 3 (xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.
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xvii. Based on our examination of the records of the Company, the company has

not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately
preceding financial year.

xviii. As per the information and explanation given to us, there has been no
resignation of the statutory auditors during the year, hence the provisions of
clause 3(xviii) of the Order are not applicable.

xix. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation
of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements and as per our knowledge of the
Board of Directors and management plans, in our opinion, no material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is capable
of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.

xx. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company,

a) In respect of other than ongoing projects, there is no unspent amount.
Hence, clause 3 (xx) (a) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

b) An amount of Rs. 1.31 Crore remaining unspent under subsection (5)
of section 135 of the Companies Act, pursuant to any ongoing project,
has been transferred to separate bank account maintained by the
Company in compliance with the provision of subsection (6) of section
135 of the said Act.

xxi. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, in our opinion the provisions of
clause 3(xxi) are not applicable to Standalone Financial Statements

For S.C. Ajmera & Co.
=N\ Chartered Accountants
I FRN: 0002908C
Place: Udaipur N Ao Y
Date: 25.04.2024 (Arun Sarupria- Partner)
UDIN: 24078398BKBOKT3713 M. No. 078398
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“Annexure - II” Referred to in paragraph 8 (vi) under the heading ‘Report on
Other Legal & Regulatory Requirement’ of our report of even date to the
standalone financial statements of the SBI Capital Markets Limited for the year
ended March 31, 2024 on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013).

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of SBI
Capital Markets Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction
with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the
year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial
controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

) o Seemae = W
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal
financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of standalone financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions
of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of standalone
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and Directors of the
Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the standalone financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that
the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31,
2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S.C. Ajmera & Co.
MERZ™, Chartered Accountants
D FRN: 0002908C
Place: Udaipur I 002308C Je2 o~y
Date: 25.04.2024 NS5 (Arun Saripria - Partner)
UDIN: 24078398BKBOKT3713 . M. No. 078398
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“Annexure III” (Referred to in paragraph 9 under the heading ‘Report on
Other Legal & Regulatory Requirement’ of our report of even date to the
standalone financial statements of the SBI Capital Markets Limited for the
year ended March 31, 2024 on Directions issued by the Comptroller and
Auditor General of India under section 143(5) of Companies Act, 2013)

1. Whether the Company has system in place to process all the
accounting transactions through IT system? If yes, the implications of
processing of accounting transactions outside IT system on the
integrity of the accounts along with the financial implications, if any,
may be stated.

> According to the information and explanations given to us and
based on our examination of the records of the Company, the
Company has system in place to process all the accounting
transactions through IT system, Oracle, which is an ERP

system. There is no processing of accounting transactions
outside the IT system.

2. Whether there is any restructuring of an existing loan or cases of
waiver/write-off of debts/loans/interest etc. made by a lender to the
Company due to the Company’s inability to repay the loan? if yes, the
financial impact may be stated. Whether such cases are properly
accounted for? (In case, lender is a Government Company, then this
direction is also applicable for statutory auditor of lender Company).

> There is/are no case/cases of restructuring of an existing loan
or cases of waiver/write off of debts/ loans/ Interest etc. made
by a lender to the Company at all.

3. Whether funds (grants/subsidy etc.) received/receivable for specific
schemes from Central/ State Government or its agencies were properly
accounted for/utilized as per its term and conditions? List the cases of
deviation.

> According to the information and explanations given to us and
based on our examination of the records of the Company, no
funds have been received / receivable for specific schemes from
central / state agencies.

4. Whether the investible funds received by company were invested in
accordance with the directions of applicable statutory regulator
[regulations and rules framed by them)]

company has not received any investible funds to be invested in\2 <; °°F%‘“
PR T [P A o ) B RGBS e o e el [ IR P Y M - ‘
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5. Whether the funds invested under the schemes/products by the
company are in compliance with the directions of the investment
committee, risk committee constituted by board, investment manual
etc. which prescribes the process /procedures, threshold exposure
limits, quality of security etc.

> Since, the company has not received any investible funds to be
invested in accordance with the directions of applicable
statutory regulator. Hence the same is not applicable to the
company.

For S.C. Ajmera & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 0002808C

Place: Udaipur e oY
Date: 25.04.2024 B (Arun Sarupria — Partner)
UDIN: 24078398BKBOKT3713 M. No. 078398




SBI Capital Markets Limited
Balance sheet as at March 31, 2024

{Rs n Lacs)

Particulars ; As at Asia
Note March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
ASSETS
(1) Financial Assets
{a)  Cash and cash equivalents 3 908 982
(b} Bank balance other than included i (a) above 3 1.87,184 1,359,669
(¢} Secunties for trade 4 1,02,015 24,585
(d}  Receivables
(1) Trade Recevables 3 15,830 13,367
(11} Other Recevables 5 70 44
le)  Investments 6 7.72.399 7,57,990
(f)  Other Financial assets 7 1,771 1.154
Total Financial Assets 10,80,178 9,57,792
(2} Non-financial Assets
(a)  Current tax asset (Net) 8 6,481 7,335
(by Investment Property 9 5,346 5,344
(¢} Property, Plant and Equipment 10 1,795 362
(e} Raght-of-use assets 10 12,594 13,358
(1 Intangible assets 11 § iy
(g} Other non-financial assets 12 1,151 736
Total Non - Financial Assets 27,375 27,352
TOTAL ASSETS 11,07,553 9,85,144
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
(1)  Financial Liabilities
(a)  Payables 13
(1) Trade Payables
- total outstanding dues of MSME - =
-total outstanding dues of creditors other than MSME 365 93
(11) Other Payvables
- total outstanding dues of MSML 4 3
-total outstanding dues of creditors other than MSME 622 397
{by  Borrowmgs 14 86,074 19.074
(¢)  Lease Liabilities 13,980 14.014
(dy  Other financial liabilities 15 5,501 3925
Total Financial Liability 1,06,546 37,706
(2)  Non-Financial Liabilities
ta)  Deferred tax Liabilities (Net) 16 1.58,970 1,54,570
(by  Provisions 17 1,305 1.194
(¢} Other non-financial habilities 18 12,813 1,572
Total non financial Liability 1,73,088 1.57,336
(3 EQUITY
(a)  Equity Share capital 19 5,803 5,803
(by  Other Equity 20 822116 7.84,298
Total Equity 827919 7.90,101
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 11,007,553 9,85,144
Material Accounting policies and notes to financial statements 1-50

The accompanying notes forms an mtegral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date

For 5 C Apmera & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 002908C

CAArn Safupna
Partner
Membersinp No.: 078398

Place: Udaipur
Date 25th Apnil, 2024

For and on behalf o

-
Virendra B

Managing Director & CEO

DIN: 10507868

Place: Mumba

Date: 25th Apnl, 2024

ard of Directors

Shesh Vermi
Whole Time Director

IN: 10177209

Amit Shah
Company Secretary
Membership No.: 18027




SBI Capital Markets Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the vear ended March 31, 2024

(Rs in Lacs)

Year Ended Year ended
Particulars Notes March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
i1y Revenue from operations
1) Interest Income 21 18.121 9.733
() Dividend Income 22 19.692 11.796
i) Fees and Commuission Income 23 43 483 37,987
(v} Net gaan on fair value changes 24 3,547 2,960
Total Revenue from Operations 84,843 62,476
(11} Other Income 25 2,525 1,739
(1) Total Income 87,368 64,214
Expenses
(1 Finance Costs 26 2,816 958
() Fees and Commission expenses el 2,613 918
tiny  Employee Benefits Expenses 28 17,022 15,128
(v} Depreciation and Amaortization 29 2,534 1,237
vy Others expenses 30 6,922 6,886
(Ivy) Total Expenses 31,907 25,128
(Vi Profiti(loss) before exceptional items 55,461 39,087
(V1) Exceptional items (Refer Note 46 87,107
(V1) Profit/(loss) before tax 1,42,568 39,087
(Vi) Tax Expense:
(1) Current Tax 8.900 7.363
(2) Tax expense/(credit) of earhier years (77 =
(2) Deferred Tax 114 (1.677)
Total Tax Expense 8,937 5,688
(VI Profit/(loss) after tax for the period/yvear 1,33,631 33,398
(IX) Other Comprehensive Income (OCT)
A Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurement of defined employee benefit plans (26) (124)
- Unreahised gain on Equity instruments through OCT 18.761 247492
- Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to
RHGILOR L1 14,286) (56.595)
Subtotal (A) 14,450 190,773
B Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
- Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to Profit
or Loss - -
Subtotal (B) - -
Other comprehensive income 14,450 1,90,773
(X} Total Comprehensive Income for the period/year 1,48,081 2.24,1N
(Xl) Earning Per Share (face value of Rs. 10 each)
Basic in Rs 230.26 57.55
Diluted in Rs 230.26 57.55
Material Accounting policies and notes to financial statements 1-50

The accompanying notes forms an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date

For 5 C Apmera & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 002908C

A »,‘,V';f’v
CA'Arun Sacupria
Partner

Membership Mo . 078398

Place: Udaipur
Date 25th April. 2024

For and on behalf of;

.
Virendra Bansal
Managing Director & CEO
DIN: 10507868

Krishnin ¢ Raghavan
Chief Finaigéial Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25th April, 2024

‘Directors

Shesh Verm
Whole Time Director
DIN: 10177209

Amit Shah
Company Secretary
Membership No: 18027
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Nofes:

The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the "Indirect method" as set out on the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS-T) Statement

of Cash flow

The Cash flow statemem and notes 1o accounts form an mtegral part of the accoum

As per our report of gven date

For 8 C Aymera & Co
Chartered Accountants

Firm | ration Mo 0029080

~ AN
CA AN up,()»x
Partner

Membership No - 078398

Place Udaipur
Date 25th Apnil, 2024

1
Virendra Binsal Shesh Verma
Managmg Director & CEO Whale Time Directar
DIN 10507868 DIN: 10177209
.-
Knshnds Kutfy BArhavan Wt Shah
Chiel FinanciaOfficer Company Secretary

Membership No - 18027
Place: Mumba
Date 25th Apnl, 2024




SBI Capital Markets L
Statement of ehanges in equity as at March 31, 2024

eid

A, Equity share capital

(Rsn Lacs)

Particulars No. of shares (lacs) Amount
Balance as at April 1, 2024 580 5,803
Changes in Equaty Share Capital due to prior peniod errors = 2
Restated balance at the bezining of the previous reporting period = =
Changes in equity share capital during the year = =
Balance t March 31, 2024 550 5,803

B. Other Equity

(Rs in Lacs)

Reserves and Surplus Other Comprehensive Income
Total ather
equity
. Equity instruments attributable
Particulars . . . o
ecurity General through other Other items of Other to equity
n reserve Reserve comprehensive comprehensive income| holders of
income the Company
Balance as at April 1, 2022 6,347 2,31,052 44,439 2,90,058 (162) 571,734
Changes i accounting policy or prior vear errors - - - - - -
Restated balance at the beginning of the previous reporting vear 6,347 2,31,052 44,439 2,90,058 (162) 571,734
Profut for the yvear - 33,398 - - 33,398
Remeasurement of defined employee benefit plans - - - - (93) (93)
Other comprehensive income - - - 1,90, 866 1,90 866
sive income for the vear - 33,398 - 1,90,866 (93) 224,171
h 31,2023 6,347 2.64,450 44,439 4,580,924 (255) 7,95.905
Tnterim Divadends pard - (11,607) - - - (11.607)
Balance as at April 1, 2023 6,347 151,843 44,439 4,850,924 155) 7.84,298
Changes in accounting policy or prior vear errors - - - - - -
Restated b e at the beginning of the previous reporting vear 6,347 2,512,843 44,439 4,80,924 (255) 7,84,298
Profut for the year - 133,631 - - 1,33,631
ment of defined employee benefit plans (net of taxes) - - - (19) (19)
ain on Equity instruments through OCT (net of taxes) - - - 14,469 - 14,469
Total comprehensive income for the perind - 1,33,631 - 14,469 (19) 1,458,081
Imenm Dividend paid - (1,10.264) - - - (1,10,264)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 6,347 276,210 44,439 4,905,393 (274) £,22.116

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompany ing notes

As per our report of even date

For 8 C Aymera & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No 002908C

™ A \v""

Partner
Membership No. 078398

Place Udarpur
Date: 25th Apnl, 2024

For and on behalt of Board of.Directors

4 r
\’Ircll(&ﬂn Shesh Verm!

Managing Director & CEQ Whole Time Director
DIN 10507868 DIN: 10177209

Amit Shah
Company Secretary
18027

v Raghavan

1al Officer
Membership No

Place Mumba

Date 25th April, 2024




SBI Capital Markets Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

1. Corporate Information

SBI Capital Markets Limited (hereinafter referred to as ‘‘the Company’”) is an Unlisted Public Limited Company
domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The registered
office of the Company is located at 1501, 15 Floor, Parinee Crescenzo, G Block, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra
East, Mumbai - 400 051, Maharashtra, India. The Company is engaged in business of Merchant Banking and
Corperate Advisory services.

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary and the Investment Banking arm of State Bank of India (SBI).
2. Material Accounting Policies

The Company has consistently applied the following accounting policies to all periods presented in these
financial statements. In addition, the Company has adopted Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendment to
Ind AS 1) from accounting period beginning from April 1, 2023 in pursuant to Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 from April 1, 2023. The amendment requires disclosure of ‘material’ (w.e.f.
April 1, 2023) rather than ‘significant’ {up to March 31, 2023) accounting policies. Management reviewed the
accounting pelicies and noted that amendment did not result in any changes to the accounting policies
themselves, they impacted the way in which accounting policy information is disclosed.

Management considers following accounting policies as material:
1) Revenue from confracts with customer — Refer Note 2(iii).
2) Finaneial Instruments— Refer Note 2{vii),

i. Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter
referred to as “Ind AS™) notificd under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 read with
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 {as amended from time to time),

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where newly issued accounting standard is mitially
adopted or a revision fo an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in
use.

The financial staternents are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) whicl is also its functional currency, and all values
are rounded off to nearest lacs, except when otherwise indicated.

The company presents its balance sheet in ordet of liquidity in compliance with the Division III of the Schedule
ITT to the Companies Act, 2013.

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 are being authorized for issue in accordance with a
resolution of the directors on April 23, 2024,

ii. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires that management make judgements,
estimates and assuniptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities-and disclosures of continigent assets and liabilities as of the date of financial statements and the income
and expenses for the reporting period. The actual results could differ from these estimates. Estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognizéd m
the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.

The company makes certain judgements and estimates for valuation and impairment of financial instruments,
useful lite of property, plant and equipment, deferred tax assets/liabilities and retirement benefit ebligations.
Management believes that the estimates used in the preparation of financial statements are prudent and
reasonable.




SBI1 Capital Markets Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

iii, Revenue from contracts with customer

Revenue {other than for those items to which Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments are applicable) is measured
at fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Ind AS 115, Revenue from coniracts with customers,
outlines a single comprehensive model of accounting for revenue arising trom centracts with customers.

The group recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five-step model as set out jn Ind AS
115:

Step 1: Identify contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more
parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteria for every contract that mmst be
met.

Step 2: identify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise in a contract
with a customer to transfer a good or service to the customer.

Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the
Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer,
excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Step 4: Allccate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract that has
more than ang performance obligation, the Company allocates the fransaction price to each performance
obligatien in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled
in exchange for satisfying each performance obligation.

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, Amourits disclosed as
revenue are net of trade allowances, rebates, cash discount and amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

The group recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the Company and specific criteria have been met for each of the Company’s
activities as described below,

a. Fee based Income.

¢ Issue Management and advisory fees are recognised as per the terms of the agreement with the
customer/client .e. fee income is recognised only when the specific act/milestone defined in the
agreement is executed/completed.

o Fees for private placement are recognised on completion of the assignment.

b. Interest Income

Interest income from financial assets is recognized when it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the
company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time
proportiondte basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial assets
to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

¢. Sale of Securities
Gains and losses on the sale of securities are recognised on trade date basis.

d. Dividend Income
Dividend income from investiments is recognised when the right to receive dividends has been established.




SBI Capital Markeis Limited
Notes forming part.of the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

iv. Property, Plant and Equipment
Measurement at Recognition:

Property plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount.

All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Cost comprises acquisition cost and
directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. The cost of an item
of property, plant and equipment is capitalized only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Depreciation:

Depreciation provided on Property, Plant and Equipment is calculated over the useful life by applying the written
down value method as prescribed in Part C of Schedule 11 fo the Companies Act, 2013, except in case of
cowmputers, servers, and hand-held devices wherein the management estimates. the usefui life to be lower i.e. 3
years. Computers, servers, and hand-held devices are depreciated over a period of three years on straight line
basis.

Based on a technical evaluation, the management believes that the useful lives of the assets reflect the periods
over which these assets are expected to be used, which are as follows:

Description of Asset Estimated useful lives (in years) | Depreciation Method
Buildings 60 wDV
Office Equipments (other than 5 wDv

mobile phones)

Furniture & Fixtures i0 WDV
Vehicles 3 WDV
Computers 3 SLM
Mabiles phones 3 SLM
Leasehold improvements Over the period lease SLM

Depreciation is provided from the date the asset is ready for its intended use. In respect of assets sale/disposal,
depreciation is provided up to the date of sale/disposal.

The residual values, estimated useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at the end of each financial year and changes if any, are accounted for on a prospective basis.

‘Capital work-in-progress and capital advances:

Cost of the assets not ready for intended use, as on reporting date, is shown as capital work in progress.
Advances given towards acquisition of fixed assets outstanding at each reporting date are shown as other
nan-financial assets.

Depreciation is not recorded on capital work-in-progress watil construction and instaliation is completed and
assets are ready for its intended use.

Derecognition:

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no
futare economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is measured as the difference between

net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the staternent of profit and
lass when the item is derecognised.




SBI Capital Markets Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statemernits as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

v. Intangible Assets

vi.

vii.

Intangible assets are measured on initial recognition at cost, Following initial recognition, intangible assets
are carried at cost less accumulated amortization.

Amortjsation;

Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line methed to write down the cost of intangible assets to their
residual values over their useful life of three years and is included in the depreciation and amortization
expenses in the statement of profit and loss.

Investment property

Investment properties are properties that is held for long-term rentals yields or for capital appreciation
(including property under construction for such purposes) or both, and is not occupied by the Company.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent fo initial
Tecognition, investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment loss, if any.

Investment properties are depreciated using thie written down value method over their estimated useful lives.
The useful life has been determined based on technical evaluation performed by the management expert.

The carrying amount of an item of investment property is derecognised on disposal or when no future
economic bepefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is measured as the difference between net

disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss
when the item is derecognised.

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity.

The Company recognizes all the financial assets and liabilities at its fair value on injtial recognition; In the
case of financial assets not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset are added to the fair value on initial recognition. The financial
assets are accounted on a trade date basis.

For subsequent measurement, financial assets are categorized into:

a. Amortised cost:

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within 2 business model whose
objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding. The gains and losses resulting from fluctuations in fair value are not
recognized for financial assets classified in amortised cost measurement category. A gain or loss on a
financial asset which js subsequently measured at amortised cost is recognized in profit or loss when the asset
is derecognised or impaired.

b. Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCT):

The Company classifies the financial assets as FVOCI if the contractual cash flows represent solely payments
of prin¢ipal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, and the Company’s business model is achieved
by both collecting contractual cash flow and selling financial assets, In case of debt instruments measured at
FVOCI, changes in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income. The impairment gains or losses,




SBI Capital Markets Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

foreign exchange gains or losses and interest calculated using the effective interest method are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss. On de-recognition, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment.

In case of equity instruments irrevocably designated at FVOCI, gains / losses including relating to foreign
exchange, are recognised through other comprehensive income. Further, cumulative gains or losses
previously recognised in other comprehensive income remain permanently in equity and are not subsequently
transferred to profit or loss on derecognition. The dividend income on equity instruments are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss.

¢. Fair value through Profit or Loss (FYTPL):

The financial assets are classified as FVTPL if these do not meet the criteria for classifying at amortised cost
or FVOCL Further, in certain cases to eliminate or significantly reduce a measurement or recognition
inconsistency (accounting mismatch), the Company irrevocably designates certain financial instruments at
FVTPL at initial recognition. In casé of financial assets measured at FVTPL, changes in fair value are
recognised in profit or loss.

Profit or loss on sale of investments is determined on the basis of weighted average price.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

¢ Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
* In the absence of principal market, in the most advantageous market for asset or liability.

The principal market or the most advantageous markets must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of 2 nonfinancial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it'to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy
of valuation techniques, as summarised below:

¢ Level 1— Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

e Level 2 — Valnation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable. [n case of unquoted debt instruments, valuation would
be done in accordance with the valvation guidelines issued by the Fixed Income Money Market and
Derivatives Association of India (FIMMDA).

s Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level inpat that is significant to the fair value
measurement is uncbservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole)} at the end of
each reporting period.

Based on the company’s business model for managing the Investments, the company has classified its
investments and securities for trade as under:
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Sr. No | Particulars Category

1 Investments-Debt Instruments Amortised Cost

2 Investments-Equity Instruments cther than subsidiary and { FVOCI
associate

3 Investment in Mutual Funds and AIF Funds FVTPL

4 Securities for frade portfolio FVTPL

Investment in subsidiaries and associates is carried at deemed cost less impairment loss if any (previous
GAAP carrying amount) as per Ind AS 27.

Financial liabilities are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate methed. For trade and other
pavables, the carrying amount approximates the fair value due to short maturity of these instruments.

Impairment of financial assets

In Accordance with Ind AS 109, the group recognise impairment loss applying the expected credit loss (ECL)
model on the financial assets measured at amertised cost, debt instruments at FVOCI, lease receivables, trade
receivables, other contractual right to receive cash or other financial asset and financial guarantee not
designated as at FVTRL.,

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights.

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial .instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime
expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recogpition,
the Company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12 months
expected credit losses. At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether the loans have been impaired.

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, the
Company applies ‘simplified approach’ permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments. This expected credit
loss allowance is computed based on a provision matrix which takes into account historical credit loss
experience and adjusted for forward-looking information.

If the amount of an impairment loss decreases in a subsequent period, and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occluring after the impairment was recognised, the excess is written back in the
statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition

A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets)
is primarily derecognised {i.e. removed from the company balance sheet) when:

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement;
and either (a) the company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates. if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of cwnership.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor
transferred control of the asset, the company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
company's centinuing involvement. In that case, the company also recognises an associated liability. The
ransferred assets and the associated Hability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the company has retained.
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viii,

Loans and borrowings

Afier initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is caleulated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. Such amortisation is included as finance costs i the
statement of profit and loss.

Derecogaition

Financial liability is derecognised when the cbligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability {s replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an excharge or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recegnition of a new liability. The
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss,

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amaounts and there is an intention to setile on a
net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously,

Taxation
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax incurred by the company.

Current Tax:

Income tax expense is recognized in net profit in the statement of profit and loss except to the extent that it
relates to items recognized directly in other comprehensive income or equity, in which case it is recognized
in other comprehensive income or equity respectively. Current income tax is recognized at the amount
expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax authorities, using the tax rates and tax laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. The Company offsets, on a year-to-year basis, the
current tax assets and liabilities, where it has legally enforceable right to do so and where it intends to settle
such assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Deferred taxes:

Deferred tax is recognized on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding amount as per tax laws is accounted for using the balance sheet
method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable témporary differences, and deferred
tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilized. Such assets and labilities are not recognized if the temporary difference arises from goodwill
or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination)} of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised cutside the profit and loss is recognised outside profit and loss
{either in other comprehensive income or in equity)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right fo set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The Company assesses at the reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be Impaired. If
any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the
assets recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of cash generating unit’s (*CGU™)
fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds ifs
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account, if
available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. kmpairment losses
are recognised in statement of profit and loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-genérating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount. However, the increased carrying amounnt does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Leases
Company as a Lessee:

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right (o control the use of an identified asset for
a period of time in exchange for consideration.

The company accounts for each lease component within the contract as a lease separately from non-lease
components of the contract and allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the
basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-
lease components.

The company recognises right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term
at the lease commencement date. The cost of the right-of-use asseét measured at inception shall comprise of
the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date less any lease incentives received, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an
estimate of coststo be incwred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset or restoring
the underlying asset or site on which it is located. The right-of-use assets are subsequently measured at cost
less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any
remeasurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use assets is depreciated using the straight-line method
from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful life of right-of-use asset. The estimated
useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those-of property, plant, and equipment.
Right-of-use assets are. tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the statement of profit and Toss.

The company measures the lease lability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date of the lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the company uses
incremental borrowing rate. For leases with reasonably similar characteristics, the company, on a lease by
lease basis, may adopt either the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease or the ineremental borrowing
tate for the portfolio as a whole. The lease payments shall include fixed payments, variable lease payments,
residual value guarantees, exercise price of a purchasé option where the company is reasonably certain to
exercise that option and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflecis the lessee
exercising an option to terminate the lease. The lease liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing the
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xi.

Xii.

xiii.

catrying amount 1o reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payments made and remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or
to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease payments.

The company recognises the amount of the re-measurement of lease liability as an adjustment to the right-
of-use assel. Where the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero and there is a further
reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the company recognises any remaining amourit of the re-
measurement in statement of profit and loss.

In accordance with the standard, the Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 to
short~term leases and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value. Lease payments for shott term
leases and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value are recognized as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term in the statement of profit or loss.

Company as a Lessor:

At the inception of the lease the company classifies each of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance
lease. The company recognises lease payments received under operatirig leases as income on a straight- line
basis over the lease term.

If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, the company applies Ind AS 115 Revenue to
allocate the consideration in the contract.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing cost includes interest expense as per the effective interest rate (EIR) and other costs incurred by
the company in connection with the borfowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets that necessarily takes a substantial period of timie
to get ready for their intended use or sale are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets is
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised in statement of
profit and loss in the year in which they are incurred.

The difference between the discounted amount mobilized and redemption value of commercial papers is
recognized in the statement of profit and loss cver the life of the instrument using the EIR.

Equity Instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences aresidual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Incremental costs directly atiributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds,

Dividend Provision

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorized and no longer at
the discretion of the Company, on or before the end of the reporting period but not distributed at the end of
the reporting peried,

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present oblipation, legal or constructive, as a result of a
past even, it is probable that an cutflow of resources embedying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are determined based on management estimates required to seitle the obligation at the balance
sheet date, supplemented by experience of similar transactions. These are reviewed at the balance sheet date
and adjusted to reflect the current management estimates.
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Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions
are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability,

Contingent Liabilities arid assets

A contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is & possible obligation that arises from past events, the
existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-cecurrence of one or more uncertain
future events beyond the contrel of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is
not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot
bemade, is termed as contingent liability. The existence of contingent liabilities is disclosed in the notes to
financial statements. Pavments in respect of such liabilities, if ary, are shown as advances.

Contingent assets are neither recoghized nor disclosed.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-termn balances
{with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), and highly liquid time deposits
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes
in value.

xvi. Employee Benefits

Gratuity:

The Company pays gratuity, a defined benefit plan, to its employees who retire or resign after a minimum
period of five years of continuous service and in the case of employees at overseas locations as per rules in
force in the respective countries. The Company makes contributions to the SBICAP Employees Group
Gratuity Scheme which is managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India foi the settlement of gratuity
liability.

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contmibution plan. The
Company’s net obligation in respect of the defined benefit plan is calculated by estimating the amount of
future benefit that employee has earned in exchange of their service in the current and prior periods and
discounted back to the current valuaticn date to arrive at the present value of the defined benefit obligation.

The defined benefit obligation is deducted from the fair value of plan assets, to arrive at the net asset /
(liability}), which need to be provided for in the books of accounts of the Company.

As required by the Ind AS19, the discount rate used to arrive at the present value of the defined benefit
obligations is based on the Indian Government security yields prevailing as at the balance sheet date that
have maturity date equivalent to the tenure of the obligation.

The calculation is performed by 2 qualified actnary using the projected unit credit method. When the
caleulation results In a net asset position, the recognized asset is limited to the present value of economic
benefits available in form of reductions in future contributions.

Remeasurements arising frem defined benefit plans comprises of actuarial gaing and losses on benefit
obligations, the return on plan assets in excess of what has been estimated and the effect of assef ceiling,
if any, in case of over funded plans. The Company recognizes these items of remeasurements in other
comprehensive income and all the other expenses related to defined benefit plans as employee benefit
expenses in their profit and loss account.

When the benefits of the plan are changed, or when a plan Is curtailed or settlement occurs, the portion of
the changed benefit related to past service by employees, or the gain or loss on curtailment or seitlement, is
recognized Immaediately in the profit or less account when the plan amendment or when a curtailment or
settlement occurs.
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Provident Fund:
Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company is
statutorily required to contribute a specified portion of the basic salary of an employee to a provident fund
as part of retirement benefits to its employees. The contributions during the year are charged to the statement
of profit and loss.

Compensated absence:

The employees can carry forward a portion of the wnntilized accrued compensated absences and utilize it in
future service petiods or receive cash compensation on terminatien of émployment. The Company records an
obligation for such compensated absences in the period in which the employee renders the services that increase
the entitlemerit. The obligation is measured on the basis of independent actuarial valuation using the projected

unit credit method. Actuarial losses/gains are recognized in the statement of profit and loss as and when they
are incurred.

xvii. Segment Reporting

The company identifies operating segments baséd on the intemnal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker.

The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of
the operating segments, has been identified as the Board of Directors that miakes strategic decisions.

xviii. Foreign Exchange Transactions

The functional currency and the presentation currency of the Company is Indian Rupees. Transactions in foreign
currency are recorded on initial recognition using the exchange rate at the transaction date, Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency closing rates of exchange
at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on the settlement or translation of monetary ilems are
recognized in the statement of profit and less in the period in which they arise.

Assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated at the closing rate at each reporting period. Income and
expenses of foreign operations are translated at monthly average rates. The resultant exchange differences are
recognized in other comprehensive income in case of foreign operation whose functional currency is different
from the presentation currency and inthe statement of profit andloss for other foreign operations. Non-monetary
items which are carried at histerical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at
the date of the transaction.

xix. Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
sharehelders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of equity shares and dilutive potential
equity shares outstanding during the year. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit
or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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xx. Critical Accounting Judgenients and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires judgements, estimates and
assumptions to be made that affect the reported amount of assets, liabilities, revenue, expenses, accompanying
disclosures and the disclosures of contingent liabilities. The estimates and associates assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results could differ from those
estimates. These estimates and underlying assurnptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised if the revision affects only
that pericd, or in'the period of the revision and fiture periods if the revision affects both current and future
petiod.

Application of accounting pelicies that require critical accounting estimates and the use of assumptions in the
financial statements are as follows:

o Defined benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment medical benefits and the present
value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves
making various assumnptions that may differ from actual develepments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate; future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities
involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes
in these assumprtions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriafe discount rate for
plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies
consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation.

The mertality rate is based on publicly available mortality tablcs. Those moriality tables tend to changge only
at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on
expected future inflation rates.

Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 35.
&«  Fair value mcasurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques
including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but
where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these
factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.
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3 | Cash and Bank Balances

{Rs 10 Lacs)
Asat Asat
Particufars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(a) Cash and Cash equivaients
Balanees with Scheduled banks
- In current accounis 908 982
Total 208 232

There are no repatriation restrictions with regard to cash and cash equivalents as at the end ef the reporting period

and prior periods.

(b} Bauk Balance other than included in {a) abave

Balances with Schednled banks

- In current eserow accounts 25 42
Term Deposits with Bank 1,387,159 1,59,627
Total 1,.57,184 1,59,66%

Rs.14,301)

1) Term deposits amounting to Rs. [,70.400 lacs (2023 Rs. 1,45,000) kept as collateral to aval overdraft facilitics of Rs.1,53,300 lacs
(2023: 1,30,500}. i) Term deposits ampunting to Rs.498 lacs (2023: Rs. 326 lacs} kept as collateral security deposit for performance
bank guarantec issued by bank in favour of customers; i1} Others (including acerued inleresi on lerm deposits) s, 16,261 lacs (2023;
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4 Securities for trade
{Rs in Lacs)
As st As at
Particulars 31-Mar-2024 31-Mar-2023
Units Ampunt Lnits Amount
A At fair value throngh profit or loss (FVTPL)
i) Debt securities- Bonds
7.7% Power Finance Corporation Lid. -10 Years - - 3004 5,000
7.7% Power Finance Corporation Ltd. -3 Years - - 10,000 10,016
7.77 % Power Finance Corgoration Ltd, -3 Years - - 3,060 3020
8.35% SBI General 2034 16,500 16,526 - -
8.20% ABHFL 2027 9,500 9,583 - -
5.10% Shriram Finance 2027 a00 00 - -
7.64% Axis Bank 2034 2,300 1,300 - -
7.35% PGCIL 2,500 2,428 - -
7.46% IRFC 2029 1,500 2,503 - -
7.55% BENL 43,000 43,000 - -
7390 IREDA 2054 2,000 2,000 - -
7.62% NABARD 20314 5,000 3,808 - -
7.5317% BSNL 2034 2,500 2.500 - -
9.33% TNDIAN BANK 2029 00 5,028 - -
4.18% INDIAN BANK 2031 500 4,311 - -
Sobt Fotal 98,474 20,036
{ii) Prefercace Sharcs (unquoted) Fully paid up
.00 1% Pasupati Fabrics Ltd of Rs. 10/- each 1,440,060 -* 1,400,000 -*
Subk Total - -
{iii)  Mutual Funds (unguoted)
- Mondy Market Funds - 2,535 - -
- Liguid fimds - 1,001 - 4,540
Sub-total 3337 4,549
Total {A) Gross 1,02,015 24,585

* Fully provided for.




SBI Capital Markets Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial § for the vear ended March 31, 2024

5 | Receivables

ia] Trade Receivables

(Rs in Lacs)
Asat As at
. March 31, 2024| March 31, 2023
Particulars
(i) Receivables- Considered good - unsecured 17,817 15,403
(ii) Receivables which have signifi increase in credit risk - -
(iii) Receivables credit impaired 1,673 1,403
Total (A) 19,491 16,808
Less : Allowance for expected credit loss
(i) Allowance for expected credit loss-Considered good-unsecured (1,987) (2,036)
(i) Allowance for expected credit loss which have significant increase in credit nisk -
(iii) Allowance for expected credit loss - credit impaired {1,673) (1.405)
Total (B) (3,660) (3,441)
Total (A+B) 15,830 13,367
Trade receivables aging schedule:
Trade receivables aging schedule as at 31 March 2024:
(Rs in Lacs)
0 ding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars 1
Less than 6 months | 6 months -1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 years “D;:t:n = Total
Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good
15.870 345 1,525 35 43 17.817
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have
|significant increase in credit risk - - - = = =
(iil) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit
impaired - - - 5 1,668 1673
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables—considered good
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have
significant increase in credit risk = . = - = =
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired
Total 15,570 345 1,525 a1 1,711 19,491
Trade receivables aging schedule as at 31 March 2023:
(Rs in Lacs)
(] ding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars
Less than 6 months | 6 months -1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 years Mo::;'::u B Total
(1) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered
ood 12,947 1,351 660 53 392 15,403
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have
significant increase in credit risk = - = 2 - -
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit
|impaired - = = 4 1,405 1,405
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables—considered good
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have
significant increase in credit risk - - - = o w
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired
Total 12,947 1,351 660 53 1,798 16,808
b) | Other Receivables
(Rs in Lacs)
As at As at
stk March 31, 2024| March 31, 2023
(i) Receivables- Considered good - unsecured 70 44
(i) Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk - -
(iii) Receivables credit impaired 90 90
Tatal (A) 160 134
Less : Allowance for expected credit loss
(i) Allowance for d credit loss-Considered good | = =
(it} Allowance for expected credit loss which have significant increase in credit risk - -
(iii) Allowance for expected credit loss - credit impaired (90) (90)
Total (B) (90) (90)
Total (A+B) 70 44




SEI Capital Markets Limited

Nutes forming part of the Financizl § s for the vezr ended March 31, 2024
5.1 | Movement In sllowance oy expected eredit loss

(B in Lacs)

As at As at

Particulars March 31, 2024| ¥arch 31, 2023
Balance at the boginning of the year 3,431 28i2
Addi(Eess): Allowance for the perod year 219 ne
Total 4751 3,531

5.2 | Receivables from Related parties

{Rsin Lacs)

Asat Axat

Particulars March 31, 2024 Warch 31, 2023
Trads Reeeivables 3,302 5,383
Other Recaivalles 37 32
Totaf 3,339 5,415




SBY Capital Markets Limited
Notes forming part pf the Financial Statements for the vear énded Mareh 31, 2024

6 | Investments

{Rs in Lacs)
As at Asat
Particulars 31-Mar-2024 31-MMar-2023
Units Amount Units Amount
I lavestments carried at fair valuc through statement of other
comprehensive income (FYQC1)
{a) Investment in Equify instruments - Unquoted
National Steck Exchange of India Limited, face value of Rs.1 cach, fully
paid up 2,14,30,000 6,955,838 2,14,50,000 6,78,442
OTC Exclange of Indiz Limited, face value of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up 11,00.000 * 11,000,000 ¥
Investor Services India Limited, face vilue of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up 535,768 #- 5,35,768 Ha
{company under voluntary lquidation]
India SME Technology Services Limited, face value of Rs. 10 each, fully
paid up 22,000 29 22,000 28
{commpany under volentary liquidation]
ONGC Wittal Evergy Timited, face value USD Leach, fully paid up 10,060,000 ¥ 10,00,000 *
Recetvable Exchange of India Limited face value Rs. 10 each. fully paid up 30.50.000 1,537 30.50,000 153
SBI Home Finaney Limited, face value of Rs. 10 each, per share 10,32,500 * 10,32,500 *-
{Company under liguidation}
Sub-total 6,97,504 6,79,223
# Represents value less than Rs. 00,50 lacs
* Fully provided for,
(b} Investment in Eqiity Instruments - Parent's Snbsidiarcies {aaquoted)
5BL DFHI Limited, face value of Rs. 100 each, tully paid up 5,953,293 4,378 3.03393 3,797
State Bank of Tndia Servicos Lmitada Brazil 1 L 1 *
SBI Foundation Limited. face valie of Rs 10 each, fully paid up” 1,001 0.10 1,061 01g
Sub-total 4,378 3,797
* Folly provided for,
Total 701,782 6,483,021




SBI Capital Markéts Limited
Motes forming part of the T ial Statements foi- the year ended March 31, 2024

[ ! Investments

. {Rs in Lacs)
As at As at
Particulars 31-Alar-2024 31-Mar-2023
Units Amount Lnits Axtount
I Investments carried at cost
{a). lnvestment in Equity Instruments - Associates (unroted)
SBI Pension Funds Private Limited face value Rs 10 each, fully paid up - - 60,00,000 600
{Refer Note No:46)
Investec Capital Services {India) Private Limtted, face value of Bs. 10 each,
fully paid up 472,820 3,500 472,830 5,500
Sulr-lotal 5,500 4,100
{b}. Investment in Equity Instruments - wholly owned subsidiaries
(unquoted)
SBICAD Secunities Limited, face valug Rs. 10 each, fullv paid up 9,68.75,000 12,500 9.68,75.000 17,560
SBICAP Trustes Company Limited, face value Bs. 10 each, fully paid up 10,606,000 5 15,00 000 5
SBECAP Ventures Limited face value Rs. 10 each, fully-paid up - - 6,03,77,717 6,038
{Refer Mate No.46)
Sub-tofal 12,505 18,543
Total 18,005 24,643
1 Investments carried at fair value through Fair Valué through Profit
and Lass (FVTPL)
(a) Tnvestments in Alternative Investment Fund [AIF) units - wnquated
Stellaris Ventures Parmers India [ Fund 863 3,189 B35 3290
Emerging India Credit Oppartunities Fund - 1 3600 3,688 3,288 3,288
5BI Special Situation Fund [ 10,000 421 10,000 533
Sub Total 7,298 1,130
{b) Envestments in MMutual funds - Ungquoted
Fixed Matunty plans - 15,563 - 14,363
Targeted MMaturity plans - 4,320 - 4,032
Debt funds - 6377 - 6,056
Sul¥ Fatal 27,069 24,951
Total 34,367 32,081




SEBI Cagital Markets Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended Murch 31, 2024

G | Investments

{Rsin Lacs}
As af As at
Particulars F1-Mar-2024 31-Mar-2023
Uinits Amaunt Linits Amount
v Investment carricd at amortised cost
Tnvestments in dehentores or boods -Quated
8.10%5 IRTC Tax Free Bonds af Rs. 1000 cach 304,510 3,045 344,510 3,045
7.3%%0 Rural Electrification Corperation Ltd of Rs. 1,000 each 1,030,000 1,000 100,000 1000
7.34 % Indian Railways Ficance Corporation Lid of Rs. 1,000 cach 1,00,000 1,000 1,000,000 1,600
&.63% Rural Electrifiestion Corporation Lid of Bs. 1000 sach 1,00.600 1,000 1,060,000 1,00
3.35% Indis Infrastruckure Finance Company Ltd of Rs. 1000 each 1,00.000 1,000 1,006,060 1,600
9.75% T&K Bank Limited of Rs. T Crore cach &l 6,003 i 6,003
$.40% Union Bank of Rs. I Crore each 44 4.1100 40 4,000
#.25% Indure Municipal Corporaton of Rs. 230 each 4,78 484 1196 475484 1,196
"atal 18,244 18,244
Fotal Investment 742,350 7.57,.990
6.1 | Category wise Investments
{Fs in Lacs)
As at As at
Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Financial Assets
- Amarhised Cost 18,244 18,244
- Cost 18,005 24643
- Fair value through other comprehensive income 7.01,782 6,583,021
= Fair value through-profit o foss 34,367 32081
Total 7,792,399 7,57,990
6.2 ! Break up of Investments
{Rsin Lags)
A at Asat
Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Invesiments in India 7,72,399 7.57,9%0
Investments outside India = -
Tatal 7.72,399 7.57,990




SBI Capiital blarkets Limited

MNotes forming part? of the Finuncial Stad ts for the year ended March 31, 2024

7 | Other financial asscts

(Rs in Laes)
Asat As at
Particulars March 31, 3024 March 31, 2023
Unsecured, Considered good
Depusits
- Secunity deposits for leased premises 442 418
- Other deposits 154 123
Advanee to cmployees 28 g
Accrued interest 1,020 459
Agerned income from services 8 33
Total 1,771 1.154
8 | Income Tax Asset (Net)
(Rs in Lacs)
As at Asat
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Advance tax aud TDS 6,481 7.335
{Met of provision for tax of Rs. 2. 02 716 Laes {2023: Rs. 193,893 Lucy)
Total 6,48% 7.335




SBI Capital Markefs Limited
Notes furming part ol the Firianeial Statemenis for the yenr ended March 31, 2024

9 I Investment Property

Particulars

{Rs in Lacs)
Asat Ay at
Particulars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Gross Carrying Amount
Opening gross camying ameount 7918 70916
Transfer (rom Property, plant & Equipment 1,600 -
Closing gross camying amount 9,516 1,916
Accumulated depreciation
Opaniong accumulatéd depreciation 2572 22491
Transfer from Property, plant & Equipment 1,316 -
Depreciation for the period 281 281
Closing accumulated depreciation 4,170 2,572
Total 5346 3,344
9.1 | Amount recoguised in Statement of Profit & Loss for Investment Properties
{Rsin Lacs)
Year Ended Year ended

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Rental income from Operating Leases 1,826 503
Direct operating expenses from property that geacraicd rental income af 33
Profit fiom Investment property before depreciation 1,766 B30
Depreciation on Tnvestment property 281 281
Profit from Investment property 1,485 569

: 5.3 iLeasing ATTADNZEN COis:

The investment properties are leased to tenants under operating lease with rentals pavable on manthby basis, FLease ineome from

openiting leases, where the conipany is a lessor is recogaised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term,

a3 I Maturity Analysis of lease payments receivable on investment properties are as follows:

{Rs in Laes)
Asat As at
Particulars March 31, 2024] March 31, 2023}
Within | year 2,235 326
Beotween 1 and 2 years 2,235 -
Betwesn 2 and 5 years 5,821 -
Later than 5 years 6,854 -
18,145 526
%.4 | Fair value:
{Rsin Lags)
Asg at As at
Particulars Mareh 31, 2024] March 31, 2023
Investment property 18862 10,373

current priges inan active market for similar properties.

{Registered Valuers and Valeation) Rules, 2017,

The Company vbiains independent valuations for its investment property at least annually, The best evidence of fair value is

The fair values of invesiment properties bave been determined by a repistered valuer as defined under rule 2 of Companies




SBI Capilal Markets Limited
Nates forming part of the Financial Statemenis for the year

led March 31, 2024

ZI]I Property Plant and equipment

{Es in Lacs)
Particulars Buildings MEZ:;(?W Eq?{ﬁce . r‘;:::fﬁz & Vehicles Compukers h:"g:i::ii ¢ Total RlT;ZiSUSE
A, Gross carrying amount
Opening balance as at April 1, 2022 1,600 4,020 753 875 45 747 - 4,043 3,833
Additions R 17 146 249 10,877
Disposals 156 i4 33 204 407 -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 1,600 4,029 684 877 15 689 - 7,886 14,81¢
Additions - - 283 2346 - 250 1,257 2,026 989
Disposals/ Adjnstments 47 14 1 232 208 -
Transfer to Invesment Property 1,600 1,600
Balance as at March 31, 2024 - 4,020 a1 1,095 14 v 1,257 8,014 15800
B. Accumulated depreciation
Opening balance as at April 1, 2022 1,301 4,420 696 B47 40 594 - 7433 713
Depreciation charge for Lhe year 15 64 16 1 103 205 7349
Disposals 147 12 gl 186 374 -
Balance as al March 31, 2423 1,316 4,020 608 850 14 515 - 7,324 1,452
Depreciation charge for the period 141 - 16 75 0 142 108,57 631 1,754.
"Transfer to Investment Properly 1,457 - 1,457
Disposals 43 18 0 218 279 -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 - 4,620 729,86 4908 14 440 109 5,219 3,206
C.  Netcirrying valué
Net carrying amount as at Marcli 31, 2024 - - 151.03 187 o 268 1,148 1,785 12,394
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2022 284 - 78 27 T 174 - 362 13,358




SBI Capital Markets Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2024

11| Intangible assets

tBs in Lacs)
Asat Ay at

Particnlars March 31,2024 ¢ March 31, 2023
Computer Software
Gross Carrying Amount
QOpening gross camrying amount 643 639
Additions - 15
Disposals/Adjustment 1 1]
Closing gross carrying amount 642 643
Accumulated smortisatian
Opening accumulated amortisation 626 625
Amortisation for the peniod 9 12
Dispasals/Other adjustments 1 11
Closing accwmulated amortisation 634 626
Tatal 8 17

11.1 All Intangible assets held by the company are purchased and not intemally generaled.




SBI Capital Markets Limited

Notes forming part of the Fi ial St for the year ended March 31, 2024

12 | Other non-financial assets

(Rs in Lacs)
As at Asat
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Depaosit with Service tax authorities 8 32
Advances for expenses 296 334
Prepaid expenses 269 202
Expenses recoverable from clients 558 57
Other advances 20 11
Total 1,151 736
13 | Payables
(I) Trade Payables
(Rs in Lacs)
Asat As at
: March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Particulars
-total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises = -
-total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises 365 93
Total (T) 365 93
Trade payable aging schedule as at 31 March 2024
(Rs in Lacs)
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
A Leas;thanl 1-2 years | 2-3 years | More than 3 years Total
Particulars year
(i) MSME - undisputed = = B - -
(ii) Others - undisputed 365 - - - 365
(ii1) Disputed dues - MSME - - N = =
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - =
Total 365 - - - 365
Trade payable aging schedule as at 31 March 2023
{Rs 1n Lacs)
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 1
Particulars vear 1-2 years | 2-3 years | More than 3 years Total
(i) MSME - undisputed - - - - -
(ii) Others - undisputed 93 - - - 93
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME - - - = =
(1v) Disputed dues - Others - - - B -
Total 93 - - - 93
(II) Other Payables
(Rs in Lacs)
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
-total putstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 4 3
~total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises
and small enterprises 622 397
Total (IT) 626 600
14 | Borrowings
As at Asat
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Secured, Payable on demand
Overdraft Facility from SBI 86,074 15,074
Total 86,074 19,074




40

SB1Capital Markets Limited
Notes forngng part of the Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2024

15 ; Other financial Babilitics

{Bs in Lacs)

Particulars

Asat
Margh 31, 2024

A al
Marely 31, 2023

Incentive payable to employees 4168 34006
Tayable for expanses 1L.17a 802
Other liabilities 61 -
Others-Payable for Capital Expenditare - -
Depoasits
-Lease depasits 33 33
~Other deposits )] 83
Tatal 5,501 3,925
16 I Dreferred Tax Liahility! {Asset}
(Rs in Lacs)
Asat Asat
Particulars Mareh 31,2024 Flaceh 31, 2023
Deterred Tax Liabiliy 1,583,970 1,524,370
Totul 1.58,976 154,570
17 I Provisions
{Bs in Lacs)
Asat Asat
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Provision for compensated-absences 974 876
Prowizian far pratuity 330, e
Tutal 1,305 194
18 | Other non-financial lia;
(R4 in Laes)
Asatl Asoal
Particulars: March 31. 2024 March 31, 2023
Current
Incame received in advance 4 1
Starutory liakilities 12,805 1,571
Tutal 12,513 1,572




SBI Capitad Markets Limited

Nates forming part of the Financial St for the year ended March 31, 2024

12 | Equily Share Capital

{B= in Lacs)

Asgat Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Particulars

A Authorised
10,00,000 Preference Shares, face value Rz 06 each 1,000 1,000
144,03,00,000 Equity Shares, face value Rs.10 each 10,000 18,000
Total 11,000 11.000
B, Tssued, subscribed and felly paid- uy:
5,20,33,711 Equity Shares, faer value R 10 each of, fully paid up 3,803 5,803
Total issued, subscribed and Fully paid-up shave capital 5,303 3,303
C. Reconciliation of shares at the beginning and sf the end of ihe each reporting vear
(Rs in Lacs)
March 31, 2024 Niarch 3, 2023
Equity Shares |
No of Shares Ameunt No of Shares Amount
At the baginning of the year 53033711 5,203 SR 5,303
At the end of the vear ,50.33,711 5,803 5.80,33,711 5,503
D. Termsirights attacted to equity shares:.
The company bas issued only ane class of equity shares having a face value of Rs, 10 per share Each holder of equity shares is entitled for one vore per share, The
dividend proposed (if any) by the Boaed of Dirkctor's is subjest to the approval of shareboklers i the cosuing Annual General Meeting, excupt in the case of interim
dividend.
En the evenl of liquidation of the company, the holder of equity share will be entitied to receive remaining assets of the company. after distribution df all preferenlial
amounts. The disribution will be in proportion fo the nuniber of equity shares held by the sharcholders.
E. Pattern of sharcholding
Dretails of shares held by sharcholders holding more than 3% of the agaregate shares in the campamy:
DMarch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Sharebolder X
No of Shares % of Uolding No of Shares % of Holding
State Bank of India (alongwith Nominees) 3.8033,71 100% 3,480,33.711 100%%
Total 5,80.35,711 10% 5,80,33,711 10054
F, Other details of equity shares for a period of five years innnediately preceding March 31, 2624:
Particulars 2023 2027 2021 2020 2019,
Aggregate no of shares allotted a3 fully paid up pursuant ta contraces B .
withont payment being reeeived in cash
Aggregate no of shares allatted a3 fully paid bonus shares - - - - -
Aggresate no of shares baught back - - - - -
G Capital Management
The company's ebjective for capital mugagement is to maximise shareholder value, safegaard business continuity 1nd support the growth of the eompany. The
company determines the capital vequirement based on annual aperating plans and long term and other sitategic investment plans The funding requirements are met
thraugh cash flows penerated from operations.
I Dretails of sharis held by promaters:

As at Mareh 31, 2024:

% rhange

Name of Promnter Ko of Shares | % of Tutsl Shares N
A doring the year

State Bank-of India, 5,8033,711 100% -

As at March 31, 2023:

% thange

Name of Promater Naof Shares | % of Total Shares .
during the vear |

State Bank of India 580,33 711 1003 -




SBI Capital Markets Limited
Notes forming part of the Finuncial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

20 | Other Equity

{(Rsin Lacs)

Reserves & Surplus

As at
Maurch 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

A General Reserve
Balance as per the last financial statements
Add : addition during the period
{Closing Balance

B Seccurities Premtium Account

Balance as per the iast financial stalements
Add : additian during the period

Closing Balance
C  Retained Farnings
Balance as per the last {inancial statements
Protit For the period
Lass | Apprapriabions
- Interim dividend
Total appropriations
Closing Balance
n Other Comprehensive Incorse (OCT}
Balance as per the last financial statements

Add : other comprehensive income during the period

Closing Balance

Total

44,439 44,439
44,439 44,439
6,347 6,347
6,347 6,347
2,52,843 231,052
1,33,631 33,398
(1.10,264) (11,607
(1,10,264) (11,607)
2,76,211 2,52,843
4,80,669 2,890,896
14,450 1.90,773
4,95,119 4,580,669
8,22,116 "7,84,295




SBI Capital Markets Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

21 | Interest Income

Particulars

(Rs in Lacs)
Year Ended Year ended
. March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Parficulars
A Interest income on financial assets measured at amortised cost:
- Tnvestments 1,588 795
- Fixed deposit with banks 13,136 7.922
Interest income on financial assets measured at fair value through profit or
B. loss:
- AIT lFunds 443 303
« Securities held for trade 2,953 713
Total 18,121 9,733
22 | Dividend Income
{Rs in Lacs)
Year Ended Year ended

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Dividend income on Financial Instraments measured at

- Fair value through other comprehensive income 17,160 9,274
- Fair value through profit or loss 2,532 2,522
Total 19,692 11,796
23 | Fees and Commission Income
{Rs in Lacs)}
Year Ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Issue management Fees 6,921 1,987
Arranger's fces 5,850 4,903
Advisory fees 30,711 31,096
Total 43,483 37,987
24 | Net gain on fair value changes
{Rs in Lacs)
Year Ended Year ended
. March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Particulars
Net gainfloss on financial instruments at fair value through profit-or loss
- Securities held for trade 677 1,863
- Investments 2,870 1,097




SBI Capital Markets Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Total

3,547

2,960




SBI Capital Markets Limited
Nates forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

24.1 [ Details of Net gain on fair value changes

Year Ended Year ended
. March 31, 2024 M¥arch 31, 2023
Particulars
~Realised 1,466 4,283
- Unrealised 2,081 {1.323)
Total 3,547 2,960
25 | Other Income
{Rsin Lacs)
Year Ended Year cnded
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rental Income 1,826 903
Bad dcbts recoverad 253 101
Interest on Income Tax refund 234 325
Exchange differences (net) 34 111
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment 3 -
Interest on security deposit 26 12
Others 149 62
Write back of Provisions
- Doubtful debts (WNet of Bad debts written off} - -
- Leave Encashment - -
Gain on Ligquidation of Subsidiary - 224
{Refer note no. 46)
Total 2,525 1,739
26 | Finance costs
(Rs in Lacs)
Year Ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Interesi expense 1,766 529
Interest on lease liability 1.050 429
Total 2,816 938
27 | Fees and commission expenses
(Rs in Lacs)
Year Ended Year ended
. March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Particulars :
Fees and commission expenses 2,613 918
Total 2,613 918




SBI Capital Markets Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

28 | Employee Benefits Expenses

fRs in Lacs)

Year Ended Year ended

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Salaries, wages and bonus 15.723 13,682
Contribution to provident and other finds 1,007 924
Staff welfare expenses 292 222
Total 17,022 15,128

29 | Depreciation, amortizition and impairment

(Rs in Lacs)

Year Ended Year ended

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Depreciation and amortisation cxpensc 499 217
Depreetation on Investment properties 281 281
Depreciation on Right to use assets 1,754 739
Total 2,334 1,237




SBI Capital Markets Limited

Notes formiug part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

30 | Other expenses

(Rs in Lacs)

Year Ended Year ended

Parfieulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Legal & Professional Fees 8a6 1,041
Conveyanee & Travelling 1,231 1,085
Rental charges 34 100
Rates & Taxes 235 78
Royalty Expenses 6638 680
Bad Debts Wrilten off {including Provisions for doubtful debis) 325 767
Postage, telephone and telex 168 104
Advertisement and business promotion 240 225
Printing & Stationery 167 69
Electricity Expenses 94 79
Repairs & Maintenance Building 213 144
Repuairs & Maintcnance Cthers 374 354
insurance 290 104
Auditor's Remuneration (Refer note 34) 3 30
Director’s Sitting Fees 39 26
Tax on Perquisites - 5
Training Charges 288 549
Membership & Subscription 393 338
Filing Fees & Other Charges 67 33
Corporate Social Responsibility expenses (Refer note 38) 624 665
Loss on sale of Property, plant and cquipment “ 2.
Miscellaneous expenses 587 409
Total 6,922 6,886

30.1 | BreaK up of Bad Debts Written off (including of Provisions for doubtful debts)

(Rs in Lacs)

Year ended Year ended

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Bad debts written off 105 48
Provision for doubtful debts written off 219 719
325 767




SEI Capital Markets Limited

Noes formling pact of the Financial § a3 at and for the vear ended March 31, 2024

3z [Eamings per equlty share (EPS)

The compwtafi on-of basic and dilioted comings per share is given below;

{Rs in Laes}
Parti Year ended Year ended
yriiculars
March-24 March-23
FProfit after tax [FEELEN 33,308
Weighted nverage numilter of eyuily shures:
- For Basic EPS (Ne.) 58033700 2,40353,711
- Far Difuted EFS (o) 38033911 5.3037,711
Wominal value pershare (Rs } [10] in
Earnings per share
- Bostein s 230,26 5755
- Diluted in Rx, 23026 57.55
33 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
{Rs in Lacs}
Asyt As at
Particulars March-24 March-23
A Conlingent Liabilitics
Cliims apainst the Company/dispited abifitiea not ackmowledged as delis
= (i} For icame tax mallers 3713 3463
—~ {iiJ Far secrvice tax matters i 2462,
- {iii} For cther mattars usc} 23
- Performance Guarantees 498 325
B Commitements
- Capital Comnitnents - L
- nher commitments- [nvestments 1,058 1,326
34 IAudilnr'! Remuneration
{Rs in Lacs)
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March-24 March-23
- Andit Faes 16 1%
- Fax audit 2 2
- Limited Review 4 4
- Other senvices feertification) 7 7
- Qut-of-pocket expenses 1 1
Tetal 30 30




SBI Capital Markefs Limited _
Notes forming part of the Finaucial Statements as uf and for the year ended March 31, 2024

33 |Empluyce Benefits

Al

Gratuity

The Compariy has z defined benefit gratuity plan. Every emplovee who has completed Five years or more ol service gets a gratuity on
departire at 135 days salary {last drawn salary) for each completed year of service. The scheme is funded with an insurance company in

the form of a qualifying insurance policy.

The following tables summarise the components of nct benefit expense recognised in the profit and loss account and the fimded status and

amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the respective plans.

Reconcilgtion of Defined benefit obligatinn
Changes in defined benefit okligation

{Rs in Lacs)
Particulars Year ended
31st March 2024 315t March 2023
Opening-of defined benefit obligation 1,190.26 1,023
Current service cost ity 95
Past service cost - -
Interest on delined benefit obligation 87 &9
Rentcasurements due to 2
- Actuarial loss/{gain) ansing from change in financial assumptions 7 59
- Actuarial loss/{ gain) arising from change in demographic assumptions [{D)] 8
- Actuarial loss/{gain) ansing on account of experience changes 20 61
Bengfils paid (124} {124)
Closing of defined henefit obligation 1,292,641 1,190
Movement in plan Assets
{Fs in Lacs)
Particulars Year ended
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Opening fair value of plan assets 872 806
Emplayer contributions 130 131
Interest on plan assets 64 54
Remeasurements due to :
- Actual return on plan assets less interest on plan assets 1 4
Benefits paid (124) (124)
Closing fair value of plan assets 962 872
Imvestment detaifs of plan assefs:
The calegorics of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows :
Particulars Year ended -
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Investrnents with insurer 100% 100%:
Balance sheet
Net asset/(liability) recognised in the balance sheet:
{Rs in Lacs)
Particalars Year ended
31st March 2024 3st March 2623
Present value of thic funded defined benefit obligation 1.293 1.3537
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 962 937
Liability recognized in the balance sheet (i-ii) 330 420




Statemest of profit & loss
Expenses recagnised in the Statement of profit and loss:

{Rs in Lacs)
Particulars Year ended
J1st March 2024 3ist March 2023
Current service cost 113 95
Past service cost - -
Net interest cost 23 15
Total expense charged to profit-and loss aceount 136 109
Statement of other Comprchensive Ircome (OCIH)
{Rs in Lacs)
Particulars Year cuded
31st March 2024 315t Mareh 2023
Opening ardount recognized in OCI outside profit and loss account in 267
Remeasurcments during the year due to:
Changes in financial assumptions 7 59
Changes in demographic assumpiions {0) 8
Experience adiustment 20 61
Actual return on plan assets lcss interest on plan assels (13 {4)
Adjustment to recognized {he effect of asset celling - -
Closing amount recognized in OCI cutside profit and loss account 417 391
The prioncipal assumptions used in determining gratuity for the Company’s plans are shown below:
Year ended
Particulars J1st March 2024 31st March 2023
% %
Discount rate 717 7.30
Salary Escalation rate 9.00 3.00

Sensitivity Analysis

The key actuarial assumptions to which the benefit obligation results are particularly sensitive to are discount rate and future salary
escalation rate. The following table summarizes the change in defined benefit obligation and impact in percentage terms compared with
the reported defined benefit obligation al the end of the reporting period arising on acoount of an increase cr decrease in the reporicd

assumption by 50 basis points

{Rs in Lacs)

Particulars

Discount Rate

Salary Escalation Rate

Defined Benefit obligation on increase i 50 bps
Impact of increase in 50 bps on Defined benefit obligation
Defined Benefit obligation on decrease in 50 bps
Impact of decrease in 50 bps on Defined benefit obligation

1268
-1.91%
1318
2.00%

1,307
-1.14%
1,278
7.40%

These sensitivitics have been calculated to show the movement in defined benefit obligation in isclation and assuming there are no other
changes in market conditions at the accounting date. There have been no changes from the previous periods in the methods and

assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analyses.




Projected plan cash flow:

‘The table below shows the cxpeeted cash flow profile of the betiefits to be paid to the current membership of the plan based on past

service of the employces as at the valuation date:

{Rs in Lacs)
Year ended

Maturity Profile 31t Marck 2024 31st March 2023
Expecled benefits for year 1 215 218
Expected benefits for year 2 191 167
Expected benefits for year 3 211 172
Expected bencfits Tor year 4 166 169
Expected benetits tor vear 3 161 136
Expected benefits for year 6-10 408 472
Expected benefits for year 11 and above 3N 351

The weighled average duration lo the payment of these cash flows is 5 years.

Compensaied Absence

The liability towards compensated absences for the vear ended March 31, 2024 is based on actuarial valuation carried out by using the

projected uait credit method,

The principal assumpéions nsed in determining compensated absences are shawn helow:

Year ended
Particulars 31st March 2024 31st Mareh 2023
Y% Y%
Interest rate 7.17 7.30
Salary Escalation rale 9.00 9.00




kL ISEGI\'IENTAL REPDRTING

- Irimary Segment

The Company's aperations falls undzr a single businsss segment of Finaneal sarvices. The Company 13 engaged in providing nvestment banking, Merchant
Lanking and comporate adnsnry services. As per the vivws of the Campany™s chiet aperating decision maker, business activities primarily talls within a sinple
aperating L O onal disel is to be provided vndet TN AS 108 - Opecuing Segments, uther than thege alresdy provided in the finanekal
afatermints,

- Geagraphical Segnient

The Company eprmmles in one gepgmpbic sepment namely “within India™ and hence no separate i ion for

[ wis2 disclosure is required.

37 ___|RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

4s per Indian Accounting Standard on related pare disclosurss (nd AS 243, the names of the relaed parties of lhe Company are 25 Tolbaws:
A Relaled pacly where eodirol exists irmespee lve whicther transzetions. have occureed or not

a. Hpldinp Company Stake Bank of India

b, Subsidiar; SBEICAP Securdlize Linited

SEICAP Venlures Limited

{upta February &, 2424}

EBICAP Trustee Cotapany Eimited

SBICAP Singapore Limited

{Volaniar wound up, Disselved on 30th Nov 2022}
B. Other relnted parties where (raosaclions ave occurred dwidng che yeir

a. Felllow Subsidiaries & Associates SBIDFHI Lirtited
SBI Funds Monagemant Limiled
5BI Life Insurance Company Limiled
5BI Cards & Payment Services Limited
$BI General surance Co Lid
SBI Foundanon Linited
Staie Bank of India Servicos Limitada Brazil
SKI Home Finanse Limited
SBI Giobal Factors Limited
SBE Pension Funds Prrvate Lirred
fupto Dacembar £, 2023)
SBI- 5G Global S2curities Services Private Limited
Investec Capital Servicas (India) Private Litnited

b. Sialf Welfare Fund SBICAPS Employee's Frovidant Fund
¢ Director and Key Management Fersonnel of the Company

Manuging Dircetor & CEQ Ehei Vicendra Bansal
{from February 15, 2024)
Shri Rajay Kamar Sinhiz
[freen 1<ty Tuly, 2027 upto 23.0d January, 20218
Shui Adnitava Chatterjee
[Brom 15t Aur 2022 upto Lath Juby, 2023)
Shri Arns Mehta
(Upta 31st July 206223

Whale Titne Directar Shri Shesh Rami Varma
{fom 23rd May, 2023 cowards)
Shri Ravi Romjan
{iram Tt Aug 2022 to 26th April, 2023)
Sl BRS Safvanarzyana
{Uto Dth A 20623

Won-Executive Independent Director Shri Dalip Kuenar Bael
&ho Pushpendma Ra
{leomy 1%0h October-2022 Onwards)
Bhei Anarh-MNuarayan Gopalakristiyan
[Upta 15t Seplember 26223

MWoen-Execurive Director Shin Rgjeev Krishnan
Smit, Shilps Waval Kemar




371 |Managerial Hemuneration

{Rcin Lacs}

Year ended Year ended
Particulars March-2¢ Blarch-23
Shri. Virendra Bansal
Short tenn empleyes benefits z -
Post employae haneliw 4] -
Shii. Rajoy Komar Sinha
Shart term emplay ee bensfits 50 -
Past emploree henelfils i -

Shri, Amitayvg Chatterjee
Short term emplavee bensfits 33 34

Past eiploy e benefis 2 A
Shed. A Belile

Short term emptoyee banafits 5 ETi]
Past employee benefits - 2
Shri. Shesh Ram Vermear

Short term emplovee benafits 32 -
Post amployee hanelis 3 -
Shri, #Havi Ranjan

Shorl term emplayes benerits 4 35
Past emplos ee benefits - g
Shri. BHS Satyanarayana

Short tenn employae benafits 3 34
Past emplos ee benefitg - 3

Lotal 184 ]




SBI Capital Markets Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

37.2 The following transactions were carried owe with the related parties in the ordinary course of business:

{Rs in Lacs)

Tarticulars

Holding Company

Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries and
Associates

Others

Mar-24

Mar-23

Mar-24

Mar-23

Mar-24

Mar-23

Muar-24

Mar-23

Income and Expense items:

(For the year ended)

Income during the year ended

Arranger Fees

3.810

3.883

SBICAP Securitics Limitcd

3BI Cards and Payment Services Limiled

73

SBI General Insurance Co Ltd

59

Advisory fees

5,974

8324 ¢

Interest Income

13,136

7,922

Rent Income

SBICAP Securities Limited

548

535

SBICAP Trustee Company Limited

]

SBICAP Ventures Limited

385

Dividend received

SBICAP Securities Limited

2,422

2,472

SBICAP Trustee Company Limited

110

100

$BI DFHI Limited

265

Employees Deputed

SBICAP Ventures Limited

35

Reversal of Impairment provision

SBICAP Singapore Limited




Expenses during the year ended

Deputation of E]‘nl:ill:n_vm:sFj

352

410

Ex-gratia paid

Shri Amitava Challerjee

11

Shri Ravi Ranjan

11

Shri Arun Melila

13

Shri BRS Satyanarayana

11

Shri. R Vishwanalhan

Director's Sitting Fees

Shri Rajecv Krishnan

i1

10

Shri Dalip Kumar Kaul

11

10

Smi. Shilpa Naval Kumar

Shri Pushpendra Rai

Shri Ananth Narayan Gopalakrishnao

Interest Expenses

1,766

441

Fees & Commission

SBICAP Sceurities Limited

114

223

Investec Capital Services (India) Private Limited

2,495

99

Legal & Professional Fees

SBI - 8G Global Securities Services Private Limited

Royalty Expense

668

680

Insurance Expense

381 Life Insurance Company Limiled

61

SBI General Insurance Company Limited

244

151

Loss on disposal of subsidiary

SBICAP Singapore Limited

82

Rent Expense

5B Funds Management Pvt. Limited

Contribution towards CSR

5Bl Foundation Linted

L OMERLS

Bank & Other Charges

SBICAP Trustee Company Limited

15

0*

ENL X



Balance Sheet Items:

{Qutstanding As on)

Share Capital

5,803

3,803

Balance payable as at

Payables

Investee Capital Services {India) Private Limited

&)

60

Bank Overdraft Facilities

86,074

19,074

Balance reccivable as at

Bank Balance

724

1,025

Deposit with Banks

1,87,139

1.59,627

Receivables

3339

5,397

SBICAP Sceuritics Limiled

15

13

SBICAP Trustee Company Limited

0%

(%

SBICAP Ventures Limited

SBI General Insurance Company Limited

Advance and KRecoverable

48

Investments in Equity

SBICAP Securilies Limiled

12,500

12,500

SBICAP Trustee Company Linuted

SBI Pension Funds Private Limited

SBICAP Ventures Limited

SB1 DFHI Lirmted

SBICAP Home Finance Limitcd®

SBI Foundation Limited

State Bank of India Scrvicos Limilada Brazil™

Investec Capital Services (India) Private Limited

Investments in Bonds

SBI General Insurance Company Limited

Others transactions during the year ended

Dividends paid

1,10,264

11,607




Winding up of Company

SBICAP Singapore Limited

6,096

Subscription in Sccnritics

2,84.736

SBI Cards & Payment Services Private Limited®

42,000

10,000

SBI General Insurance Company Limited

20,000

Sale of securities

142,010

1,82,635

SBi General Insurance Company L.imited.

32,542

2,502

S$B! DFHI Limited

$BI Life Insurance Company Limited

3,17,767

7.21,927

SBI Funds Managemeni Private Limited

Sale of stake in SBICAP Venlures Litd.

70,307

Sale ol stake in SB] Pension Fund Private Lid,

22,952

Guarantees

498

325

Borrowings availed

16,20,858

3,33,040

Burrowings repaid

15,53.837

5.13,966

Expenses recovered

1

SBICAP Securities Limited

76

73

SBICAP Venlures Limited

42

Expenses shared

SBICAP Securifies Linuted

18

Investee Capital Services (India) Private Limited

10

# Included in expenses relating to deputation ol employees are amounts aggrepaling to Rs. 144 lacs (2023: Rs. 129 lues) pertaining to salaries paid to key management personnsl.

* Insignificant amount.

TMERA

* Represents amount below Rs. 030 lacs.

“rulty provided
$Ouistanding as at 31st March 2024 is Nil.

7 FAN, \+
‘z;oo c)2
R S

FEoacc

The Company has contributed Rs. Nil {March 31, 2023: 185 Lacs) to SBICAPS Employee's Provident Fund during the yeur, With effect from st September 2022, the SBICAP employce
provident fund has been transferred to Employees Provident Fund Organisation (EPFO).




34 Statément of corparate saclal resporsibility expenditure

Asper Seclivn (35 oftha Companies Act, 2013, 2 conpany, meexmy e applicabilicy threshold, neads 1o spend at heast 2% ol its averags net profit for the

i diataly f dinyg e o] vears an corporie social rezp [C8R} aclivitis,
{Rs in Eacs)
Year ended Year ended
[P articalars March-24 March-23
a Ciross amannt requirzd to be spent during the year -4 05
b Amount spent during the vear an
- {i) Canstruetionacauisitian of any asset - -
- {if) On purpases other than (i) above - 1n cash 549 570
- {iii} provision made with respect to 1iabilite incurred by eotering in cantractuzt e b5
joblipation )

During the year company has pravided liability ofRs 13 ¢ Yacs (2023 93 Jacs) towards contractuad ebligaiion with respect 1o umspent amount in ¢ase ol ongaing
Comerale Socist Responsibility (CBR) Profeets. The said amouit bas been transfemed 1o separate bank account maintained by the Company in accordance with
amended Seedon 135 of Companies Act, 2013 teud alerswith C jes (Cop Social Respongibility Policy) Rules. 2014, notified by Ministry of
Ceporate Affairs effective Fom Janmare 22, 3021,

39 Ei\-[i:rn and small enferprises

This i ion is requirad to be disclased undet the Micro, Small and dMedium Enterprises Development Azt 2006 b has been delcrmined ta the extent

such parties have been ideatifred an the basis of information ovailable with the Company,

Particulay Asal Asat
March-24 Margh-23

The amoyn|s remaining unpaid o any supplier at the end af e year:

1. Principal amount 4 3

2. Intaest amaunt - .

The amounts of irmerast paid by the buyer in leoms of sectian L6 of the MSMED Act, 20 - -

The amaunts of the payments made to micro and smail suppliers bevand theappoinked day
during eaeh aceounting vear

The amoumt of Imerest due and pavable far the pared of dalav in niaking payment witich havel
been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) bt without adding the intareat - -
specified wader MSMED Acl, 2000

The amount of intarest acerued and remainfag unpaid o the end ol each accounting vear - -
‘Ul amount of furher intzrast ramaibing dus wnd payable even in the suceeeding vaars, until

such date when the interast dues 1¢ nbove are actaally paid 1 the small enterprisz for the - -
purpose of dizail at ¢ deduridble expenditure under the MSMED Act, 2006




A

40 Income taxes

Thee majoe ulitcorme Lt sxpense for the » ear are 28 dnder:

Year ended Year ended
Purticulars March-24 March-23
Current Tax
In respect of cument vear 900 7,303
In respect of carier vaar {77} -
Total [A) 5,523 7.363
Deferred Lax
Qfiination of teversal af temposany dilletonces 1L 11,677}
Impact of chanpe in t ras - -
Tatal () 114 (L6877}
Tncome Tas neeapnised in the statement of Profit and Loss (A+E)} 2.537 5,688
Trcome tax expenses recognized in OCY
Incame tax relting 1o ireras that wilt not be chussifeed 1o prafil or sk 4286 56.395
Tetal 4286 56,595
‘Reconciliation of tnx expenses and the accounting profit for the vear is as under:

Year ended Year ended
Particulars lavch-24 Blarck-23
Prodit belovee tax 142568 10,087
Enacred tax rates in ndia 15168 23108
Income tox expenses 35851 1,837
Tax on expanses not fax deductible 2463 120
Tax an idewine from exemp! income (27.163) {5,127y
Ters on items twable at fower rates (473 {206}
Tax oo Capital Losses - {1ay
Total Tax exprenscs g5 perstatement of profit and loss 2937 5,688

The applicabie Idian corpommle statulory kax mte. 23 168%,




SBI Capital Markets Limijted

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements as at and for the venr ended March 31, 2024

C Movement of Deferred tux assets and {(Liabilitics)

i As at March 31,2024

{Rs in Lacs)
. } As at Credit/(Charge) Credltﬁits;rgc) " Agat
Movement during the vear ended Mareh 31, 2024 . in the statement i X
April 1, 2023 comprehensive Narch 31,2024
of prefit and loss p
income
Difference between hook and tax deprecialion 46 41 - 137
Allowances for doubtful debts and advances 239 35 - 944
Fair value gain/{loss) an imvestments {1.57.103) {477y (4,293} {1.61,873)
Provision for post retirement benefits 00 a1 6 328
Other termporary differences 1,299 196G - 1,495
Met deferred tax asscts/{Liabilities) {1,34,570} 114y {4,286) (1,58,570)
i As at March 31, 2023
{Rsin Lacs)
Credit/(Charge} in
. . As at Creditf{(Charge) other As at
Movement during the year cnded March 31, 2023 April 1,2022} in the statement comprehensive March 31, 2023
of profit and loss income
Difference between book and tax depreciation 42 4 - 46
Allowances for doubtfial debts and advances 708 18 - 259
Fair value gain/(loss} on invesiments (1,00,807} 328 {56.626) (1,57,103)
Provision for post retirement benefits 253 14 3l 300
Other temparary differences 130 1,150 - 1,299
Net deferred {ax assets/{Liahilities) {949 652) 1,677 (56,5935) {1,54.5%0)




SBI Capital Markets Limited
Wates forining part of the Financial Statements as at and for the year eaded Marcch 31, 2024

41 |Financial Instruments

Reter to financial instruments by categary table below for the disclosure on carrying value and Fair valus of financial assets aod liabilities, For fifancial assets and
Liabilstics maluring within one year fom. the Balance Sheet date and which are not caried at fair value, the carvying smounts approximate fair value due to the
short matsrity of these instruments.

The carrying value of financial instruments by categodes as of March 31, 2024 is as follows:

{Rs in Lacs)
. Amortised Fair Value| Fair Value| Total Carrying| .y

ParGeulars Cost| __throuh P&L] through OCI Vatue| otal Fair Value
ASNETS:
Cash and cash equivalents R 903 408
Other balances with hanks 1,587,134 1,987,184 1,87, 184
Seeurides for trade 1,02,015 i,02015 . 1,02,01%
Receivables 15,900 15,900 15,900
Invesunents excluding Subsidiary and Assotiate 18,244 34.367 7,00,782 7,54.394 1.54,394
Other Finaneiz] Asscts ) 1,771 - - 1,771 1,771
‘Total 1,24 008 136,382 701,782 1062173 10,62,173
LEABILITIES:
Trade Payabics 990 - - 950 80
Lease habilitivs 13,980 - - 13,980 13,980
Crber financial Lishilities 5301 - - 5501 5,301
Bomowings 86,074 - - 86,074 86,074
Totat 1.06.546 - - 106,546 1,006,545
The camying value of financial insiruments by categories as of March 31, 2023 &5 as follows:

(Rs in Lacs)

. Amortised} Fair Value Fair Yalue| Totul Carrying| .

Particulars Cust|  throngh P&L|  throuvh OCI Value] 10131 Fair Value
ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents 982 - - 82 GR2
Other balaoces with banks 159,662 - - 1,59,66% 1,539,668
Secunties for trade - 24 38% - 24,585 24,585
Receivables 13,412 - - 13412 13,412
Invesiments excluding Subsidiary and Associate 18,244 32,081 6,583,021 733,347 733,347
Other Finanetal Asscts 1,154 - - 1,154 1,154
Tatal 193,462 56,666 6,83.021 9.33,149 3,33.149
LIABILITIES:
Trade Payables 604 - - 93 693
Lease liahilities 14,014 - - 14,014 14,014
Other financial Habitities 3,523 - - 3,923 3,925
Bomewings 19,074 - - 12,074 19,074
Taotal 37, M6 - - 37,706 37,706
Fair Value Hierarchy:

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an assct or paid to transfer a liability in an arderly wansaction in fhe principal for most advantageous) market at
the measurement date under current market conditions (i.c.. an exit price}, regardless of whether that price is directhy observable or estimated using 1 vahution
techmique.

The investments inchuded in level | of Gor value hicrarchy have been valued using quoted prices for instruments in an active market. The investments included in
level 2 of fair value hisrrehy have been valued using valuation techniques based on ebservable market data, The investments mchuded in Level 3 of fair vahse
hierarchy have been valued using the income approach and break-up value to arrive at their fair vahue. There is no movement between Level 1, Level 2 and Level
3. There is no change in inps wsad for mensuring Level 3 fair value.




The following table

ed at fair value on recurring basis:

(Rs in Lacs)
As at March 31, 2024 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Instruments
Securities for trade
- Debt Securities 98,479 - - 98,479
- Equity Shares - - - -
= Mutual Funds 3,537 - - 3,537
Sub total 1,02,015 - - 1,02,015
Investments
- Equity Shares - - 7,01,782 7.01,782
- Mutual Funds 27,069 - - 27,069
- AIF Funds - - 7,298 7,298
Sub total 27,069 - 7,09,081 7,36,149
Total 1,29,084 - 7,09,081 8,38,165
(Rs in Lacs)
As at March 31, 2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Instruments
Securities for trade
- Debt Securities 20,036 - 20,036
- Equity Shares - E - -
- Mutual Funds 4.549 - - 4,549
Sub total 24,585 - - 24,585
Investments
- Equity Shares . - 6,83,021 6.83,021
- Mutual Funds 24,951 - - 24,951
- AIF Funds - - 7,130 7,130
Sub total 24,951 - 6,90,151 7,15,102
Total 49,536 - 6,90,151 7,39,687

Movements in Level 3 Fi

ed at fair value

mstr

The Following table shows a reconciliation of the opening and closing amounts of Level 3 financial assets and liabilities which are recorded at fair value.

(Rs in Lacs)

Asat As at

Particulars March-24 March-23
Opening Balance 6,90,150 4.40,857
Add: Purchase 368 1,682
Less: Sales (953) (128)
Add: Fair Value Gain/(Loss) 19,514 2,47,739
Closing Balance 7,09,079 6,90,150

Financial assets subject to offsetting, netting arrangements

There are no instruments which are eligible for netting and not netted off.
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Financial Risk Management
Risk Management Framewark'

The Company has established a comprehensive system for risk management and internal contrals for ait its businesses to noanage the risks that it is exposed to. The
objective ofits risk management framework is to ensure thai vasions risks are identificd, measurcd-and mitigeted and also that policies, procedures and standards
are established to address these risks and engure a systematic response in the case of crystallisation of such risks,

The Company has exposure to the followiny nak ansing from financial instrements;
a} Credit Risk

b} Liguidity Risk

¢} IMarket Risk

‘he Company has formulated various policies with respect to such risks, mitipation stratepies and mternal controls to be implemantsd. The Board oversees the
Company's risk management and has constituted a Risk Moanagement. Committec (“*RMEC™), which frames and reviews dsk manayement processes and controls.

g) Credit Risk
It {5 risk of financial loss that the Company will incur a loss because its customer or counterparty to the financial instruments fails to mest its contractual abligation.

‘The Company's financial assets comprise of Cash and bank bakanee, Securities for trade, Trade receivables, Loans, [nvestments and Other finaneial assets which
comprise mainly of deposits.

The madmum exposure to eradit risk at the reporting date is primanily from Company’s Trade receivable, Debt instmments in Securites for wrade and investment
portfolio.

Thie following table provides, expostires o credit risk for wads receivables, securities for rade and investments:

{Rs in Lacg)

Asat As at]

Particulars March-24 March-23
Trade receivabics 15,330 13,367
Crher recetvables T 44
Drebe Insmruments in secwriles for trade and investment pordlia 1,16.723 38,280
Total 1,32,623 51,692

Trade Receivahles

The Company has fllowed simplified method of ECL in case of Trade receivables and the Company recognises lifetime expected losses for all frade receivables
that do not constitate a financing transaction. At cach reparting date, the Company assesses the impairment requirements,

“The expected credit loss.rates are based en the payment profiles over a peried of 24 munths before the reparting year and the corresponding historical credit losses
expuricncdd within this period. The historical loss rates arce adjusted to.reffect cument and farward Iooking infermation on macro econoinic factors affecting the
ability of the customers to scttlo the reoeivahles.

The following table provides information about the rate axpected credit loss for rade reccivables under simplified approach:

As at March 31, 2024: (Bs in Lacs)
. Experted Credit} Gross Carrying| Expected Credit Net Carrying
Age of Trade reccivables Eaoss Rate| Amaonnd Luss Amaunt
0-3 Months 3% 14,153 708 13.445
3-t Mounths 15% 1717 258 1.459
6-9 Months 238 333 83 250
9-12 Months 35% i1 4 7
12-15 Months 15% 728 328 401
15-18 Months 3% 176 97 %
18-21 Months T0% 624 434 186
21-24 Months 90% - - -
24 Months and abave 100%% 1,751 1,749 2.3
Total -i 19491 3.660 15,834




As at March 31, 2623;

{RsinLacs)

- Expected Credit| Gross Carryving| Expected Credit Net Carrying

Age of Trade reccivables Lass Rate Amgunt Laoss| Arpowt]
0-3 Months. %o 11,552 578 10,973
3-6 Months 13% 1,385 217 1178
6-2 hlonths 23% 1,273 318 93
9-12 Mouths 35% 78 27 31
12-15 Months 45% 207 93 114
15-18 Months 35% 139 7% 63
18-21 Months 0% 3 3 1
21-24 Months 0% 309 278 3t
24 Months and above 100% 1,851 1,831 -
Tuotal 16,808 3442 13,367

The gross camving amount of trade ceceivables is Bs. 19,491 lacs (2023 Rs. 16,808 Lacs)

During the year company made write off of Rs. 103 tacs {2023: Rs. 48 lacs) it does nat expret torective fiutre cash fows or recoveries from collection of cash

flows praviously written off

Drebt Instruments in Securites fir frade and Tavestinent Porifolio:

All of the entity's deht invesmnents are congidered 1w have low credin tisk, Management considers instmements to be low credit rigk when they have a low risk of

default and the issner has a strong capacity to meel its contraciual cash flvw ablipations in the near temm.

Cher Financial Assets considered to have low risk:

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited to the current account and depasit account balance with banks wilh high eredit ratings assigned by international
and domestic credit rabny speneies. investments compnizsed of Equity Instuments, Mutual Fonds and commercial papers which are market twadeable, Other
fnancial aseets inclode deposits for assets acquired on lease. deposit with electieity depariment ind interest. accrued on securides but not due.

b) Ligquidity Risk

Liquidity represents the ability of the Company to generate sufficient cash flow to-meet {5 fnancial obligations on time, both in normal and in seressed conditions,
without haviny to liquidate aszets or mise fnds at unfavourable tetns thus compromisime ibs camings and capital.

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able 1o geparate sufficient cash flow at reasonable cost to meet

in the funding of lending, rading and investnent activities and in the management of trading positions.

tard

and far P

d clabms, Teacises

The Company aims to maintain the level of its eash and cash cquivalents and othar Highly maketable investents st s amount in execess of expected eash outflow

an finaneial lighilitios,

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the undiscvunted cash flows of the Campany’s financial asscts and lisbilities as at Matck 31, 2024:

{Re in Lacs)

Particulars Less than 16 years Greaser than Fotal
1 year 5 yeurs

Assets
Cash and bank balance 27429 1.60,663 - 1,88,002
Securities for trade 1.02,013 - - 102,013
Reccivables 15,500 - - 15,900
Investments - 31,93% T4L464 7,72,399
Orther Financial assets 1,007 393 371 1,771
Total 1,46,352 1,92,991 7.40,8353 14,%0,178
Liahilities
Payables 990 - - 990
Lease liabiities 2,261 9,736 1,983 13,980
Other financial Habilities 5,501 - - 5,401
Borrowings 86,074 - - 86,074
Total 94,827 9,736 1.983 1,064,546
Net Excess/(shortfall) 51,525 1,853,256 7.38,852 9,73,632




The table helow summanses the maturity profile of the undiscounted cash flows of the Company s financial assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2023

{Hs 1n Lacs)

Particulars Less thaa 1-5 vears Greater than Tatal

1 year M 3 years
Assets
Cash and bank balance 1.60.651 - - 160,651
Sceurities for trade 34,585 - - 24,585
Receivables 13,412 - - 13,412
Investments - 26,333 731457 7,317,990
Qiher Fingreial assets 749 123 282 1,154
Total 1,959,397 26,656 731,739 9,57,792
Liabilities
Payables 693 - - 693
Lease liabilities 937 7,361 3,696 14,014
Chber Anancial lisbilities 3525 - - 3,925
Borrowings 19074 - - 19.074
Tosal 24,650 7,361 5,696 37,706
Net Excess/{(shorifall) 1,74,748 19,296 7.26,042 9,208,086




. Market Risk

Market risk arises when tovements in market factors {foreign exchange rates, interest rates, credit spreads and equity peices) itopact Lhe Campany’s income ar the
market value of its porttolios. The Comparmy, in its covrse of business, is exposed to market risk due to change in equity prices and interest rates. The objective of

market fsk maragement is @ manain an acceptable fevel of market sk exposure while aiming to maximize retirns. The Company classifies exposures to market
risk into eivher trading or non-trading portfolies. Both the pordfolios are managed nsing the following sensitivity analyses:

i) Eoterest rate risk

The company's lavestiients are primaely in fxed rate ieresty dividend beardng instruinerts. Accordingly thers is no significant risk exposure to {nterest rate nisk.

ii} Price Rick

Price rigk {5 the sk that valuz of the financial ingtrument witl fluctuates as a resuit of change in market prices and related market variables incloding interest rate for
investhient in nnial finds and debt securities, whetber caused by factors specific 10 an individual itvestment, its fssuer and mackets. The cotmpany’s sxposute (o
price ngk anses fom myvesiments o unguoted equity gecuriBes, debi secuntics vnits of mtual fimds and abermative investment finds wiich s classifed as
financial assets cither ar fair value through other comprehensive income ot at fair values through profit and loss,

(R m Lacs)
As at: Asg at
Paréicolurs Mavch-24 ¥arch-23
Securities Tor trade 1.02.013 24,383
Investments 136,149 715,102
Total 8,138,165 7,309,687
Sensitivity Analysis
The table below set out (e effect on profit or loss and equity due to reasenable possible weakeningfsrengthening in prices of 109
{Rs1n Lacs)
Year ended Yeur ended
Particalars Marck-24 March-23
Effect on Profit and loss
10%a increase in prices 10,284 4,314
10%: decreasc in prices (10,284 {4314
Effect en Eguity
1094 increase in prices L1271 51,675
10% decrease in prices {34.121) {32.675)




42 I_Leas:s
2.1 !As a Lessee

A coitract is, of cantams, a lease if the contract conveys the right ro control the use of an idenufied asset for & pegod aftime in exchange Tur cunsiderition.

412 ‘The following is the movement in lease labiliny:

{Rs inn Lacs)
g atl Asat
Particutars XMarch-24 Marel-23
Opening Balancs 14,014 402
Add Lease liahiliey created duriog the year 70 L1683
Add. kvterest on lease Liahility foe the yaar 1,050 329
Loess: Repmvment of lease lishitity during the vaar {2,034) {500)
Total 13,950 14,014
423 E‘I‘he detalls of right.to use zaseis held by the contpaoy ace as wilder:
As at March 31, 2024
{Rs in Lars)|
Additions for the year| Carrying Amuunt]
o4y 12,330
Furniluee & Finmures [
Total 959 12,594
Az at March 31, 2023
(B in Lars

Particulars Additions for the vear| Carrylng Amaunt|

Auildings 10,477 13.246
Furnituee & Fixtums - 112
‘L'etal 1877 L3.35%
424 Depeecintion un Right of wae assets is as follows;

Year ended Year ended
Pagticulars March-24 Barch-23
| Buildings LT08 691
Fumilure & Fixiures 48 Et
Toial 1,754 739

The gompany has {oken certain premises on shout term laases which are oflaw value. Eease rent charged in raspect of same have been charged under Rent
425  lexpensesn Mot 31 to the statement of Profit and Loss. Lease rent amaunting Lo Rs, #4 lacs (2023 1M lacs) has been debited to siatement ol profit and foss

duricg Lhe vear ended March 31, 2024,

424 As A Lestur

The eompany is not required 1o take sy adjusiments on imnsition ko Ind AS § 16 for leases in which it acts a5 a lessar,

43 Revenue from contracts with custemers

The Campany is engaged in the busmess of invesiment banking and corporale advisany seniees in aecardancs with Tnd AS 113, Revenue feein Conteacts with
Custamers, the revenue is a¢caunied in the following manner,

‘The Company provides invesutient banking seraces 1o it cuslomers and eams Tevenue in the form of advisorn fees an issue management services, mergers md
debt smnd B adyisuty services eic.

In case of these advisony transsciions, the pedormance obligaticn and its ion price ie | in cantrsct wilk the customer, For aranprements with o
fxad tenn, the Company' may commil 1o deliver services in the fulure. Revenee associated with thess ranaining performance abligalivns typicaly depends om
the acewrence of future events end is nat recopmized vntif the outeoma of those events or values we known. In case ol which have a P of
success fee or variable fee, the same is considered in the frangaciion price when ihe ding the idaration is tesalved.

R ining performance obligati i (H
The ankily recaguises revenue fom 2 customer in an amount that comespands dizectly with the vatue ta the customar pravidad an e basis al perfarmance
camplesed to date Applying the practical expedicnt as given in Ind A% 113, the Campany has not disclosed the ining perl thligan Tared

dizclnsums for contracts,




SBI Capital Markets Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

44 |Maturity- Analysis

The table below shows an analysis of assels and liabilities analysed according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled.

As at Within After Asat Within After
March-24 12 menths 12 months March-23 12 months 12 months
ASSETS

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 908 S08 - G982 982 -
Rank balance other than abave 1,87,184 26,521 1,60,663 1,59,669 1,59,669 -
Securities for-trade 1,02,315 1,02,015 - 24,585 24,585 -
Receivables -

Trade Receivables 15,830 15,830 - 13,367 13,367 -

Other Receivables 70 70 44 44 -
Investments 7,72,39% - 7,72,399 7,57,990 - 7.57,990
Other Financial asscts 1,771 1,007 764 1,154 749 405
Total Financial Assets 10,80,178 1,46,352 9,33,826 9,57,792 1,99,397 7,58,395
Non-financial Assets
Currenf tax asset {Net} 6,481 - 6,481 7.335 - 7,335
[nvestment Preperty 5,346 - 5,346 5.344 534 4,810
Propetty, Plant and Equipment 1,795 - 1,795 562 - 562
Right-ofiuse assets 12,594 - 12,594 13,358 1,671 11,687
Capital work in progress - - - - - -
Intangible assets 8 - 8 17 - 17
Other non-financial assets 1,151 1,151 - 736 736 -
Tatal Non - Financial Assets 27,375 1,151 26,224 27,352 2,941 24411
TOTAL ASSETS 11,07.553 1,47,502 9,60,050 9,85,144 2,02,338 782,806




LIABILITIES Asgat Within| After As at Within After
March-24 12 months 12 months March-23 12 months 12 months
Financial Liabilities
Payables 990 990 - 693 693 -
Borrowings 86,074 86,074 - 19,074 19,074 -
Lease liabilities 13,980 2,261 11,719 14,014 957 13,057
Other financial Jiabilities 3,501 5,501 - 3,925 3,925 -
Total Financial Liability 1,06,546 94,827 11,719 37,706 24,649 13,057
Non-Financial Liabilities
Deferred tax Liabilities (Net) 1,58.970 1,358,970 1,54,571 - 1,54,371
Provisions 1,305 520 784 1,194 500 694
Other non-financial liabilities 12,813 12,813 - 1,572 1,572 -
Taotal non financial Liability 1,73,088 13,334 1,59,754 1,57,337 2,072 1,55,265
Total Liabilities 2,79.634 1,08,160 1,711,473 1,953,043 26,721 1,68,321
Net 8,27,919 39,342 7,88,577 7.90,161 1,75,617 6,14,485




45 ISiguﬁﬁc:ml | in Subsidiaries and A

Name of the Comp Subsidiary/ %a of shares held as on 315t
Principal place of business Associate NMarch, 2024

SBIC AP Securiies Limited,
191, Maker Tower Cuffe Parade. Whelly- Owned Subsidiary 100 0%
Mumbas, 406 0035

SBIC AP Trustee Company Limned

202. Maker Tower Culle Parade Whally- Owned Subsidiary 100.00%
Mumbai. 400 003

SBICAP Ventures Lumited Whelly- Owned Subsidiary

2012, Maker Tower Cuffe Parade {Upto Februany 7, 2024 0.00%
Mumba, 4040 (105 1110%4)

SBI Pension Funds Private Limited Associate

32. 3rd Floor. Maker Chambers 111, {Upto December 8. 2023 0.00%

Mariman Point. Mumba 400021 20%%)

Investec Capital Services (India) Private Linmled
LHIE=1114 Parinee Crescenzo, | [th Floor, B Wing Associate 19 T0%
Bandra Kurla Complex, Mumba 4004051

4 Stake Sale of Associate and Subsidiary

The Company has sold ns entire investment in SBI Pension Funds Private Limuted 1o State Bank of India Linuted (parent entity) on ¥1h December, 2023
(effective date) with the requisite regulatony approvals from RBI and approval from Board of Directors in their meeting held on 241h July, 2023

Upon complenon of aloresmd transaction. SB1 Pension Funds Private Linuted ceased 10 be an associate of the company from effective date

The resultant gain on of Rs 22.34% Lakhs (net of expenses incurrad towards the sale of an associate) 15 presented as an exceplional tlem in accordance with Ind
A5 | "PY of Financial Stat g

The Company has sold 115 entire investment in SBICAP Ventures Linuted to State Bank of India Limited (parent entily ) on Tith February. 2024 {eflective date)
with the requisite regulatory approvals from RBI and approval from Board of Directors in their meeting held on 24th July, 2023

Upon complenen of aforesaid transaction, SBICAP Ventures Limited ceased 1o be the subsidian of the company [rom effective date

The resultant gan on of Rs 64,755 Lakhs (net of expenses incurred 1owards the sale of the subsidiany ) 15 presented as an exceptional tlem in accordance with
Ind AS 1P, ol Financial 5t 15"

47 The Campany does not have any with the It struck olT under section 248 of Companies Act. 20013 or sechion 560 of Compamies Act, 1936

Addional regulators iformation reqired under (WB) (xiv) of Division LT of Schedule 11l amendment. disclosure of ratios. 1s not applicable to the company as

45 -
company 15 in the business of Merchant Banking and Advisors Services and not an NBFC registered under section 45-1A of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934
44 Events ocurring after the halance sheet date
There have been no events alter the reporting date that require disclosure in these financial statements
St The ligures for the corresponding previous yvear have been regrouped / reclassified whereser necessary, 1o make them comparable
As per our report ol even date For and on behall of Board of Durectors
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